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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes No
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See the definitions of "large accelerated filer,” "accelerated filer,” "smaller reporting company” and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 
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Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company 

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial 
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial 
reporting under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 U.S.C.7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firmthat prepared or issued its audit report.

If securities are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the registrant included in the filing reflect the correction 
of an error to previously issued financial statements.

Indicate by check mark whether any of those error corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of incentive-based compensation received by any of the 
registrant’s executive officers during the relevant recovery period pursuant to §240.10D-1(b).

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes No

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant on July 31, 2024, based on a closing price of $7.62 was 
approximately $285,315,972. 

As of April 7, 2025, there were 37,596,000 shares of the registrant's common stock outstanding. 

Documents Incorporated by Reference: The information called for by Part III will be incorporated by reference from the Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A or will be included in an amendment to this Form10-K. 
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FORWARD LOOKINGSTATEMENTS 

Included in this Form 10-K are "forward-looking statements,” as well as historical information. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking 
statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Our actual results could differ 
materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including matters described in the section titled "Risk Factors.” Forward-looking 
statements include those that use forward-looking terminology, such as the words "anticipate,” "believe,” "estimate,” "expect,” "intend,” "may,” "project,” "plan,” "will,” "shall,” 
"should,” and similar expressions, including when used in the negative. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable 
and achievable, these statements involve risks and uncertainties and we cannot assure you that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements. Except as 
required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements, whether to reflect events or circumstances after the date initially filed or 
published, to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events or otherwise. 

PART I 

Item1. Business. 

Our Company 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the "Company") is a leading marketer and manufacturer of fresh deli-prepared foods, found in over 10,000 grocery, mass, 
club and convenience stores nationally. The Company’s broad product portfolio, born from MamaMancini’s rich history in Italian foods, now consists of a variety of high-quality, 
fresh, clean and easy-to-prepare foods to address the needs of both our consumers and retailers. Our vision is to become a one-stop-shop deli solutions platform, leveraging 
vertical integration and a diverse family of brands to offer a wide array of prepared foods to meet the changing demands of the modern consumer. 

MamaMancini’s roots go back to our founder, Dan Dougherty, whose grandmother Anna "Mama” Mancini emigrated from Bari, Italy to Bay Ridge, Brooklyn in 1921. Our products 
were developed using her old-world Italian recipes that were handed down to her grandson, Dan Dougherty. Over time, we have expanded our core product lines through 
acquisitions and internal development and today our product line includes all-natural specialty prepared refrigerated foods for sale in retailers around the country. Our primary 
products include beef and turkey meatballs, meat loaf, chicken, sausage-related products and pasta and rice entrees. 

Our products include the MamaMancini's brand featuring many all-natural meals that contain a minimumnumber of ingredients, many of which are derived fromthe original recipes 
of Anna "Mama” Mancini. Our products appeal to health-conscious consumers who seek to avoid artificial flavors, synthetic colors and preservatives that are used in many 
conventional packaged foods. 

The United States Department of Agriculture (the "USDA”) defines "all-natural” as a product that contains no artificial ingredients, coloring ingredients or chemical preservatives 
and is minimally processed. Many of MamaMancini’s products were submitted to the USDA and approved as all-natural. The Food Safety and Inspection Service ("FSIS”) Food 
Standards and Labeling Policy Book (2003) requires meat and poultry labels to include a brief statement directly beneath or beside the "natural” label claim that "explains what is 
meant by the term natural, i.e., that the product is a natural food because it contains no artificial ingredients and is only minimally processed.” The term "natural” may be used on a 
meat label or poultry label if the product does not contain any artificial flavor or flavoring, coloring ingredient, chemical preservative, or any other artificial or synthetic ingredient. 
Additionally, the term"all-natural” can be used if the FSIS approves your product and label claims. The Company’s all-natural product and label claims have been approved by the 
FSIS to contain the all-natural label. 

Our products are principally sold to supermarkets, club chains, mass-market retailers, and food distributors. We currently have more than 100 product offerings across our beef, 
chicken, salad and olive portfolios that are packaged in different sized retail and bulk packages. Our products are principally sold in the deli section of the supermarket, including 
hot bars, salad bars, prepared foods (meals), sandwich, as well as cold deli and foods-to-go sections. 

Olive Branch, LLC ("OB” or "Olive Branch”) concentrates on selling olives, olive mixes, and savory products to a limited number of large retail customers, primarily in pre-packaged 
containers. Olive Branch products are manufactured at the same facility as T&L Creative Salads ("T&L” or "T&L Creative Salads”) in Farmingdale, NY. 
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Our History 

The Company was originally organized on July 22, 2009 as a Nevada corporation called Mascot Properties, Inc. ("Mascot”). 

In February 2010, MamaMancini’s LLC was formed as a limited liability company under the laws of the state of New Jersey in order to commercialize our initial products. In March 
2012, the members of MamaMancini’s LLC exchanged their equity for shares in MamaMancini's Inc., a Delaware Corporation ("MamaMancini's"). 

In January 2013, MamaMancini's became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company via a merger transaction. Effective March 11, 2013, Mascot began trading under the name, 
"MamaMancini’s Holdings, Inc.” and the symbol "MMMB.” 

The Company acquired Joseph Epstein Food Enterprises, Inc., a New Jersey corporation and manufacturer of food products ("JEFE”), pursuant to a merger transaction in 
November 2017. 

In December 2021, the Company acquired both T&L and Olive Branch, related gourmet food manufacturers based in New York, for a combined purchase price of $14 million, 
including $11 million in cash at closing and $3 million in a promissory note (the "Note”). The promissory note requires annual principal payments of $750,000 payable on each 
anniversary of the closing, together with accrued interest at a rate of three and one-half percent (3.5%) per annum. The Note holder is T&L Creative Salads Inc., and it is 
guaranteed by the Company. The cash payment was funded through cash on hand and a $7.5 million acquisition loan from M&T Bank. Anthony Morello, Jr. remained as President 
of T&L. 

On June 28, 2022, the Company acquired a 24% minority interest in Chef Inspirational Foods, LLC ("CIF”), a leading developer, innovator, marketer and sales company selling 
prepared foods, for an investment of $1.2 million. On June 28, 2023, the Company completed the acquisition of the remaining 76% of CIF, for $3.7 million, including approximately 
$1.0 million in cash at closing and a $2.7 million promissory note. 

Reflecting the evolution of the Company from its origins as a home-style, old world Italian food company to a broader provider of products featuring all-natural specialty prepared 
refrigerated foods for sale in retailers around the country, on July 31, 2023, the Company adopted its current name "Mama’s Creations, Inc.,” and began trading under the ticker 
symbol "MAMA" on August 2, 2023. 

Industry Overview 

Our products are considered specialty prepared foods, in that they taste great, are authentic and are made with high-quality ingredients. The market for specialty and prepared 
foods spans several sections of the supermarket, including deli-prepared foods and the specialty meat segment of the meat department. 

Our Strengths 

We believe that the following strengths differentiate our products and our brands: 

• Authentic recipes and great taste. Our MamaMancini’s products are founded upon Anna "Mama” Mancini’s old-world Italian recipes. We believe the authenticity of our 
products has enabled us to build and maintain loyalty and trust among our current customers and will help us attract new customers. Additionally, we continuously receive 
positive customer testimonials regarding the great taste and quality of our products. 

• Healthy and convenient. Our products are made only from high-quality natural ingredients and are simple to prepare. Virtually every product we offer is ready-to-serve within 
10 minutes, thereby providing quick and easy meal solutions for our customers. By including the sauce and utilizing a tray with our packaging, our products can be prepared 
quickly and easily. 

• Great value. We strive to provide our customers with great-tasting products using healthy ingredients at an affordable price, many of which are all-natural. Typical retail prices 
range from$7.99 to $9.99 per pound for freshly prepared products sold in delis or hot bars. We believe the sizes of our product offerings represent a great value for the price. 

• New products and innovation. Since our inception, we have continued to introduce new and innovative products. While we pride ourselves on our traditional beef and turkey 
meatballs and grilled chicken offerings, we have continuously made efforts to grow and diversify our line of products while maintaining our high standards for healthy 
ingredients and great taste. 
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Customers/Management 

• Strong consumer loyalty. Many of our consumers are loyal and enthusiastic brand advocates. Our consumers trust us to deliver great-tasting products made with healthy or 
all-natural ingredients. They have actively communicated with us through our website and/or social media channels. We believe that this interaction has generated interest in 
our products and has inspired enthusiasm for our brand. We also believe that enthusiasm for our products has led and will continue to lead to repeat purchases and new 
consumers trying our products. 

• Agile customer support: We meet the needs of not just our end consumers but also our customers and retail partners. Having a strong track record of more than 15 years, our 
retail partners trust our quality and can rely on our service. Through T&L Creative Salads and Olive Branch, we now serve as a "one-stop-shop” deli solution for them. 
Tangibly, this means that retail buyers don’t need to manage dozens of regional, specialty suppliers on a daily basis, but rather call Mama’s Creations to deliver all of their 
proteins, salads, sandwiches and entertaining needs nationwide. 

• Experienced leadership. We have a proven and experienced senior management team. Our leadership teamincludes AdamL. Michaels, Chief Executive Officer ("CEO”) and 
Anthony Gruber, Chief Financial Officer ("CFO”). 

Our Growth Strategy 

We are actively executing a strategy to build our brand’s reputation, grow sales and improve our product and operating margins by pursuing the following growth initiatives: 

• Build Breadth & Depth of Distribution: We believe our brands, MamaMancini’s, T&L Creative Salads and Olive Branch, are still under-penetrated in existing sales channels, 
under-SKU’d in existing stores and have the potential to enter new channels. We will leverage our strong brand, superior quality and high-touch service to list more of our 
items in existing customers as well as enter new customers. In addition, we will be leveraging our existing customer relationships to cross-sell our newly acquired brands, 
thereby driving larger consumer baskets, expanding promotional opportunities, and driving down freight charges, as we are shipping more Mama’s items to the same 
locations. 

• Launch Consumer-Driven Innovation: As we become even more consumer-focused, we seek to understand consumers’ unmet deli needs. We will passionately understand 
our consumers and develop incremental sales opportunities. We will seek to develop products that capture incremental occasions, consumer groups and sales channels. For 
example, our Meatballs in a Cup solutions, as well as our retail-pack paninis, provide (1) for a "new for us” snacking occasion incremental to our current meal offerings, (2) an 
attraction to a younger, on-the-go consumer audience, and (3) for an incremental sales channel with entry into the Convenience Store channel. 

• Pursue Accretive, Complementary Acquisitions: We plan to identify and integrate major acquisitions in new deli categories when opportunities arise, capitalizing on the 
highly fragmented nature of the fresh prepared foods space. Ideal acquisition opportunities might bring incremental/accretive manufacturing capabilities and product 
capabilities within a new deli sub-category, strengthen our distribution capabilities, and/or enhance our management capabilities. 

• Become the One-Stop-Shop Deli Solution: We believe the Company has the potential to achieve $1 billion in sales through a combination of accretive acquisitions of 
complementary companies and organic growth, spurred by cross-selling and new product innovation. As the Company builds national scale, expands its breadth of deli 
offerings and maintains exceptional quality and service, the Company believes it will realize this vision. 

Pricing 

Our pricing strategy focuses on being competitively priced with other premium brands. Since our products are positioned in the authentic premium prepared food category, we 
maintain prices competitive with those of similar products and prices slightly higher than those in the commodity prepared foods section. This pricing strategy also provides 
greater long-termflexibility as we grow our product line through the growth curve of our products. Current typical retail prices range from$7.99 to $9.99 for prepared food products 
sold to delis or hot bars. Increases in commodity costs, among other factors, may lead us to consider price increases in the future. 

Suppliers/Manufacturers 

As of January 31, 2025, approximately 95% of our products are internally produced in our East Rutherford, NJ or Farmingdale, NYfacilities. None of our raw materials or ingredients 
are directly grown or produced by us. Fromtime-to-time we negotiate with other manufacturers to supplement the Company’s manufacturing capability. We currently purchase 
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modest quantities from other manufacturers. Substantially all of the raw materials and ingredients in our products are domestically sourced and are readily available by our 
suppliers. We have not experienced any material shortages of ingredients or other products necessary to our operations and do not anticipate such shortages in the foreseeable 
future. 

Sales/Brokers 

Our products are sold primarily through a commission broker network. We sell to large retail chains who direct our products to their own warehouses or to large food distributors. 

The Company increased its sales management efforts with the result that the Company is now actively soliciting business with almost every major retail supermarket chain in the 
country. The Company’s products are currently sold nationwide. 

Marketing 

The majority of our marketing activity has been generated through promotional discounts, consumer trials, consumer product tastings and demonstrations, in-store merchandising 
and signage, couponing, word of mouth, consumer public relations, social media, special merchandising events with retailers and consumer advertising. 

Based on the Company’s metrics for determining brand awareness, which include market studies and analysis of consumer recognition of the MamaMancini’s brand, the Company 
believes that brand awareness for MamaMancini’s has grown in the past 12 months. 

Competition 

The gourmet and specialty prepared food industry is fragmented and has many private competitors specializing in various types of cuisine fromall over the world. While our 
product lines have historically been concentrated on Italian specialty foods, with our recent acquisitions, we have moved beyond Italian to provide a "one-stop-shop" for our deli 
partners. While it is our contention that our competition is much more limited than the prepared food industry based on our products’ niche market, there can be no assurances 
that we do not compete with the entire pre-packaged food industry. We believe our principal competitors include Amylu, Bakkavor, Blount Fine Foods, DeLallo Foods, Hormel, 
PremiumBrands, Reser's, Sandridge, Spring Glen, and Taylor Farms. 

Intellectual Property 

Our current intellectual property consists of trade secret recipes and cooking processes for our products and five trademarks for "MamaMancini’s,” "The Meatball Lovers 
Meatball,” "The Original Meatball in a Cup,” "The Olive Branch," and "Mama's Creations.” The recipes and use of the trademarks have been assigned in perpetuity to the 
Company. 

We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright and trade secret laws to establish and protect our proprietary rights. We will also use technical measures to protect our 
proprietary rights. 

Human Capital 

As of January 31, 2025, we had 305 full-time employees and no part-time employees. Currently, none are covered by collective bargaining agreements. We believe that our relations 
with our employees are good. Our human capital resources objectives include, as applicable, identifying, recruiting, retaining, incentivizing and integrating our existing and 
additional employees. The principal purposes of our equity incentive plans are to attract, retain and reward personnel through grants of equity-based compensation awards in 
order to emphasize increasing stockholder value and our success by motivating such individuals to performto the best of their abilities and achieve our objectives. 

We recognize that a significant part of our success is the continued ability to execute our human capital strategy of attracting, developing and retaining talent. We also offer a 
robust set of benefits in order to recruit and retain employees, and are committed to creating an inclusive work environment designed to make employees and consultants feel 
comfortable and accepted. We continue to take action to help ensure our practices, policies, and processes are inclusive and equitable for all colleagues. 

Royalty Agreement 

In accordance with a Development and License Agreement (the "Development and License Agreement") entered into on January 1, 2009 with Dan Dougherty relating to the use of 
his grandmother’s recipes for the products to be created by Mama’s, Mr. Dougherty granted us a 50-year exclusive license (subject to certain minimumpayments being made), with 
a 
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25-year extension option, to use and commercialize the licensed items. Under the terms of the Development and License Agreement, Mr. Dougherty shall develop a line of beef 
meatballs with sauce, turkey meatballs with sauce and other similar meats and sauces for commercial manufacture, distribution and sale (each a "Licensor Product” and collectively 
the "Licensor Products”). Mr. Dougherty shall work with us to develop Licensor Products that are acceptable to the Company. Upon acceptance of a Licensor Product by us, Mr. 
Dougherty’s trade secret recipes, formulas, methods and ingredients for the preparation and production of such Licensor Products shall be subject to the Development and 
License Agreement. 

USDA Approval/Regulations 

Our food products, which are manufactured both in our own manufacturing facilities and in third-party facilities, are subject to various federal, state and local regulations and 
inspections regarding sanitation, quality, packaging and labeling. In order to distribute and sell our products outside the State of New Jersey and the State of New York, the 
third-party food processing facilities must meet the standards promulgated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (the "USDA”). Our manufacturing processing facilities and 
products are subject to periodic inspection by federal, state, and local authorities. The facilities in which our products are manufactured are inspected regularly and comply with all 
the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration ("the FDA") and USDA. 

We are subject to the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and regulations promulgated thereunder by the FDA as well as related legislation, including the Food Safety Modernization 
Act. This comprehensive regulatory program governs, among other things, the manufacturing, composition and ingredients, packaging, and safety of food. Under this program, 
the FDA regulates manufacturing practices for foods through, among other things, its current "good manufacturing practices” regulations, or GMPs, and specifies the recipes for 
certain foods. Specifically, the USDA defines "all-natural” as a product that contains no artificial ingredients, coloring ingredients or chemical preservatives and is minimally 
processed. Many of our Mama Mancini’s products were submitted to the USDA and approved as "all-natural.” However, should the USDA change its definition of "all-natural” at 
some point in the future, or should Mama’s change these existing recipes to include ingredients that do not meet the USDA’s definition of "all-natural,” we may need to modify our 
labeling and our results of operations could be adversely affected. 

The Federal Trade Commission ("the FTC") and other authorities regulate how we market and advertise our products, and we are currently in compliance with all regulations related 
thereto, although we could be the target of claims relating to alleged false or deceptive advertising under federal and state laws and regulations. Changes in these laws or 
regulations or the introduction of new laws or regulations could increase the costs of doing business for us or our customers or suppliers or restrict our actions, causing our 
results of operations to be adversely affected. 

Quality Assurance 

We take precautions designed to ensure the quality and safety of our products. In addition to routine third-party inspections of our manufacturing facilities, we have instituted 
regular audits to address topics such as allergen control, ingredient, packaging and product specifications, and sanitation. Under the FDA Food Modernization Act, both our own 
manufacturing facilities and each of our contract manufacturers are required to have a hazard analysis critical control points plan that identifies critical pathways for contaminants 
and mandates control measures that must be used to prevent, eliminate or reduce relevant food-borne hazards. 

Our manufacturing facilities are certified in the Safe Quality Food Program ("SQF") as level II facilities. These standards are integrated food safety and quality management 
protocols designed specifically for the food sector and offer a comprehensive methodology to manage food safety and quality simultaneously. Certification provides an 
independent and external validation that a product, process or service complies with applicable regulations and standards. 

Where You Can FindMore Information 

Our website address is https://mamascreations.com,  where we make available free of charge our reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, including any amendments to these reports, 
as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Reports of beneficial ownership filed 
by our directors and executive officers pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act are also available on our website. We are not including the information contained on our 
website as part of, or incorporating it by reference into, this Annual Report on Form10-K. These filings are also available to the public at  www.sec.gov. 
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Item 1A. Risk Factors 

Risks Relatedto our Business 

We have a limitedhistory of profitability. 

Since inception on February 22, 2010 and through January 31, 2025, we have raised approximately $23.3 million in capital. During this same period, we have recorded net profit 
totaling approximately $0.2 million. As of January 31, 2025, we had working capital of approximately $4.9 million. Our net income for the three most recent fiscal years ended 
January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 has been approximately $3.7 million, $6.6 million, and $2.3 million, respectively. Our ability to achieve continued profitability depends upon many 
factors, including our ability to develop and commercialize products. There can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve growth and profitability consistent with historical 
performance. 

We may needadditional capital, which may be difficult to raise for a variety of reasons. 

While we believe that we have adequate financing to execute our current growth plan, in the case that we exceed our expected growth, we will need to raise additional capital 
and/or significantly cut expenses and overhead in order to operate the business through such date. Currently, we have no plan to raise additional capital, and our access to 
funding is always uncertain. There is no assurance that additional equity or debt financing will be available to us when needed, on acceptable terms or even at all. In the event that 
we are not able to secure financing, we may have to scale back our development plans or operations. 

The majority of our business depends on a limitednumber of principal customers. 

Because we depend on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of our sales, a loss of a small number of these customers could materially adversely affect our 
business and financial condition. During the year ended January 31, 2025, the Company earned revenues fromone customer representing approximately 44% of gross sales. As of 
January 31, 2025, two customers represented approximately 38% and 16% of total gross outstanding receivables, respectively. During the year ended January 31, 2024, the 
Company earned revenues fromthree customers representing approximately 26%, 11%, and 10% of gross sales, respectively. As of January 31, 2024, four customers represented 
approximately 20%, 15%, 13% and 10% of total gross outstanding receivables. During the year ended January 31, 2023 two customers represented approximately 25% and 13% of 
gross sales, respectively. If these principal customers cease ordering products fromus, our business could be materially adversely affected. 

Competitive product andpricing pressures in the foodindustry andthe financial condition of customers andsuppliers couldadversely affect our ability to gain or maintain 
market share and/or profitability. 

We currently operate in the highly competitive food industry, competing with other companies that have varying abilities to withstand changing market conditions. Any 
significant change in our relationship with a major customer, including changes in product prices, sales volume, or contractual terms may impact financial results. Such changes 
may result because our competitors may have substantial financial, marketing, and other resources that may change the competitive environment. If we are unable to establish 
economies of scale, marketing expertise, product innovation, and category leadership positions to respond to changing market trends, or increase prices while maintaining a 
customer base, our profitability and volume growth could be impacted in a materially adverse way. The success of our business depends, in part, upon the financial strength and 
viability of our suppliers and customers. The financial condition of those suppliers and customers is affected in large part by conditions and events that are beyond our control. A 
significant deterioration of their financial condition would adversely affect our financial results. 

We face competition from companies who produce similar products andother preparedfoods, many of whom have longer operating histories or have substantially more financial 
resources. 

Many of our competitors have been in business for a significantly longer period of time than we have and have learned manufacturing techniques which can aid in efficiently 
producing their products. Additionally, many of these companies have successfully acquired a loyal customer base that would be difficult for us to compete with. Such customers 
may be unwilling to purchase our products due to brand loyalty or uncertainty in the highly competitive market in which we compete. In addition, if we gain traction in our 
particular niche of creating gourmet prepared foods, major food companies with substantial marketing and financial resources may attempt to compete more directly with us. In the 
event that such large companies do directly compete with us, our business may be adversely affected. 
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Our operations are subject to regulation by the U.S. FoodandDrug Administration ("FDA”), U.S. Department of Agriculture ("USDA”), Federal Trade Commission ("FTC”) 
andother governmental entities andsuch regulations are subject to change from time to time, which could impact howwe manage our production andsale of products. Federal 
budget cuts couldresult in furloughs for government employees, including inspectors andreviewers for our suppliers' plants andproducts, which couldmaterially impact our 
ability to manufacture regulatedproducts. 

Our food products are manufactured in facilities that are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA, the USDA and other national, state, and local authorities. For example, we are 
subject to the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and regulations promulgated thereunder by the FDA. This comprehensive regulatory programgoverns, among other things, the 
manufacturing, composition and ingredients, packaging, and safety of food. Under this program, the FDA regulates manufacturing practices for foods through, among other 
things, its current "good manufacturing practices” regulations, or GMPs, and specifies the recipes for certain foods. Specifically, the USDA defines "all-natural” as a product that 
contains no artificial ingredients, coloring ingredients or chemical preservatives and is minimally processed. Many of our MamaMancini's products were submitted to the USDA 
and approved as "all-natural.” However, should the USDA change its definition of "all-natural” at some point in the future, or should the Company change these existing recipes to 
include ingredients that do not meet the USDA’s definition of "all-natural,” we may need to change our labeling and our results of operations could be adversely affected. 

The FTC and other authorities regulate how we market and advertise our products, and we could be the target of claims relating to alleged false or deceptive advertising under 
federal and state laws and regulations. Changes in these laws or regulations or the introduction of new laws or regulations could increase the costs of doing business for us or our 
customers or suppliers or restrict our actions, causing our results of operations to be adversely affected. 

The needfor andeffect of product recalls couldhave a material adverse impact on our business. 

We could be required, and in some instances have in the past been required to, recall certain products due to labeling, contamination, damage, or tampering, whether caused by us 
or someone in our supply chain. A widespread recall or market withdrawal could result in significant losses due to the cost of a recall or withdrawal, the destruction of inventory, 
potential liability claims, and lost sales. The costs associated with recalls could be impacted by issues encountered in tracing products within our facilities or in the supply chain. 
In addition, a product recall or withdrawal could also result in adverse publicity and a loss of confidence in our products, which could have a material impact on our business. 

In addition, we purchase ingredients fromthird-party suppliers. If these materials include contaminants that impact the safety or quality of our products, we may need to find 
alternate materials, delay production, or dispose of our inventory, which could impact our operations. Additionally, if this occurs after the product has been distributed, we may 
need to withdraw or recall the affected product and we may be subject to liability claims. We cannot assure that we will not be required to performrecalls, or that liability claims will 
not be asserted against us in the future. 

We may be subject to significant liability if the consumption of any of our products causes illness or physical harm. 

The sale of food products for human consumption involves the risk of injury or illness to consumers. Such injuries or illness may result frominadvertent mislabeling, tampering or 
product contamination or spoilage. Under certain circumstances, we may be required to recall or withdraw products, which may have a material adverse effect on our business. 
Even if a situation does not necessitate a recall or market withdrawal, product liability claims may be asserted against us. If the consumption of any of our products causes, or is 
alleged to have caused, a health-related illness, we may become subject to claims or lawsuits relating to such matters. Even if a product liability claimis unsuccessful, the negative 
publicity surrounding any assertion that our products caused illness or physical harmcould adversely affect our reputation with existing and potential distributors, retailers and 
consumers and our corporate image and brand equity. Moreover, claims or liabilities of this sort might not be covered by insurance or by any rights of indemnity or contribution 
that we may have against others. A product liability judgment against us or a product recall or market withdrawal could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation 
and operating results. 

The impact of various foodsafety issues, environmental, legal, tax, andother regulations andrelateddevelopments couldadversely affect our sales andprofitability. 

Our products are subject to numerous food safety and other laws and regulations regarding the manufacturing, marketing, and distribution of food products, particularly by the 
USDA and state and local agencies. These regulations govern matters such as ingredients, advertising, taxation, relations with distributors and retailers, health and safety matters, 
and environmental concerns. The ineffectiveness of our manufacturer’s planning and policies with respect to these matters, and the need to comply with new or revised laws or 
regulations with regard to licensing requirements, trade and pricing 
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practices, environmental permitting, or other food or safety matters, or new interpretations or enforcement of existing laws and regulations, as well as any related litigation, may 
have a material adverse effect on our sales and profitability. 

Increases in the cost andrestrictions on the availability of rawmaterials couldadversely affect our financial results. 

Our products include agricultural commodities such as tomatoes, onions, poultry, meats and other items such as spices and flour, as well as packaging materials such as plastic, 
metal, paper, fiberboard, and other materials and inputs such as water, in order to manufacture products. The availability or cost of such commodities may fluctuate widely due to 
government policy and regulation, crop failures or shortages due to plant disease or insect and other pest infestation, weather conditions, potential impact of climate change, 
increased demand for biofuels, or other unforeseen circumstances. To the extent that any of the foregoing or other unknown factors increase the prices of such commodities or 
materials and we are unable to increase our prices or adequately hedge against such changes in a manner that offsets such changes, the results of our operations could be 
materially and adversely affected. Similarly, if supplier arrangements and relationships result in increased and unforeseen expenses, our financial results could be materially and 
adversely impacted. 

Disruption of our supply chain couldadversely affect our business. 

Damage or disruption to our manufacturing or distribution capabilities due to weather, natural disaster, fire, terrorism, pandemic, strikes, the financial and/or operational instability 
of key suppliers, distributors, warehousing and transportation providers, or brokers, or any other reasons could impair our ability to manufacture or sell our products. To the extent 
that we are unable to, or cannot financially mitigate the likelihood or potential impact of such events, or to effectively manage such events if they occur, particularly when a 
product is sourced froma single location, our business and results of operations may be materially adversely affected, and additional resources could be required to restore our 
supply chain. 

Higher energy costs andother factors affecting the cost of producing, transporting, anddistributing our products couldadversely affect our financial results. 

Rising fuel and energy costs may have a significant impact on our cost of operations, including the manufacture, transportation, and distribution of products. Fuel costs may 
fluctuate due to a number of factors outside of our control, including government policy and regulation and weather conditions. Additionally, we may be unable to maintain 
favorable arrangements with respect to the manufacturing costs of our products as a result of the rise in costs of procuring raw materials and transportation by our manufacturers. 
This may result in increased expenses and negatively affect operations. 

Global economic uncertainties continue to affect consumers’ purchasing habits andcustomer financial stability, which may affect sales volume andprofitability on some of our 
products andhave other impacts that we cannot fully predict. 

As a result of continuing global economic uncertainties, price-conscious consumers may replace their purchases of our premiumand value-added products with lower-cost 
alternatives, which may impact the price and volume of some of these products. The volume or profitability of our products may be impacted if consumers are reluctant to pay a 
premiumfor higher quality foods or if they replace purchases of our products with cheaper alternatives. Additionally, distributors and retailers may become more conservative in 
response to these conditions and seek to reduce their inventories. Our results of operations depend upon, among other things, our ability to maintain and increase sales volume 
with our existing distributors and retailers, to attract new consumers and to provide products that appeal to consumers at prices they are willing and able to pay. Prolonged 
unfavorable economic conditions may impact our sales and profitability. 

We rely on key personnel and, if we are unable to retain, motivate key personnel, or hire qualifiedpersonnel, we may not be able to groweffectively. 

Our success depends in large part upon the abilities and continued service of our executive officers and other key employees, particularly Mr. Adam L. Michaels, our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chairman and Anthony Gruber, our Chief Financial Officer. There can be no assurance that we will be able to retain the services of such officers and 
employees. Our failure to retain the services of our key personnel could have a materially adverse effect on our business. In order to support our projected growth, we will be 
required to effectively recruit, hire, train, and retain additional qualified management personnel. Our inability to attract and retain necessary personnel could have a materially 
adverse effect on our business. 

The failure of newproduct or packaging introductions to gain trade andconsumer acceptance andaddress changes in consumer preferences couldadversely affect our sales. 
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Our success is dependent upon anticipating and reacting to changes in consumer preferences, including health and wellness. There are inherent marketplace risks associated with 
new product or packaging introductions, including uncertainties about trade and consumer acceptance. Moreover, success is dependent upon our ability to identify and respond 
to consumer trends through innovation. We may be required to increase expenditures for new product development, and there is no guarantee that we will be successful in 
developing new products or improving upon products already in existence. Additionally, our new products may not achieve consumer acceptance and could materially negatively 
impact sales. 

Changes in our promotional activities may impact, andmay have a disproportionate effect on, our overall financial condition andresults of operations. 

We offer a variety of sales and promotion incentives to our customers and to consumers, such as price discounts, consumer coupons, volume rebates, cooperative marketing 
programs, slotting fees, and in-store displays. Our net sales may periodically be influenced by the introduction and discontinuance of sales and promotion incentives. Reductions 
in overall sales and promotion incentives could impact our net sales and affect our results of operations in any particular fiscal quarter. 

We may not be able to successfully implement our growth strategy on a timely basis or at all. 

Our future success depends, in large part, on our ability to implement our growth strategy of expanding distribution and improving placement of our products, attracting new 
consumers to our brand and introducing new product lines and product extensions. Our ability to implement this growth strategy depends, among other things, on our ability to: 

• enter into distribution and other strategic arrangements with third-party retailers and other potential distributors of our products; 

• continue to compete in conventional grocery and mass merchandiser retail channels in addition to the natural and organic channel; 

• secure shelf space in key supermarket locations; 

• increase our brand awareness; 

• expand and maintain brand loyalty; and 

• develop new product lines and extensions. 

We may not be able to successfully implement our growth strategy. Our sales and operating results will be adversely affected if we fail to implement our growth strategy or if we 
invest resources in a growth strategy that ultimately proves unsuccessful. 

We are currently selling products in food retailers in the United States. If we are unable to expand into additional mass-market retailers or sell products in a greater number of 
supermarkets, we will fall short of our projections and our business and financial condition would be adversely affected. 

As a smaller supplier, we may not sell enough items in certain stores, and as such as our products may not be placed in the most ideal locations to catch the attention of end 
consumers. If we are unable to gain significant sales growth, our products may never be displayed in the most attractive locations in stores and our sales may suffer. 

We may be unable to successfully execute our identifiedgrowth strategies or other growth strategies that we determine to pursue. 

We currently have a limited corporate infrastructure. In order to pursue growth strategies, we will need to continue to build our infrastructure and operational capabilities. Our 
ability to do any of these successfully could be affected by one or more of the following factors: 

• our ability to raise substantial amounts of additional capital if needed to fund the implementation of our business plan; 

• our ability to execute our business strategy; 
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• the ability of our products to achieve market acceptance; 

• our ability to manage the expansion of our operations and any acquisitions we may make, which could result in increased costs, high employee turnover or damage to 
customer relationships; 

• our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; 

• our ability to manage our third-party relationships effectively; and 

• our ability to accurately predict and respond to the rapid market changes in our industry and the evolving demands of the markets we serve. 

Our failure to adequately address any one or more of the above factors could have a significant impact on our ability to implement our business plan and our ability to pursue other 
opportunities that arise. 

We may be unable to maintain quality control. 

Although we have entered into raw material supply agreements specifying certain minimumacceptable quality standards, there is no assurance that our current quality assurance 
procedures will be able to effectively monitor compliance. Additionally, in the event that we expand our operations and increase our output volume, including securing third-party 
manufacturers, there is no assurance that we will be able to adequately maintain quality controls or that our current manufacturing process is scalable. 

There may be product liability andother legal claims. 

We currently carry product liability insurance. Although we believe that the amount of insurance coverage is sufficient for our operations, there is no assurance that the coverage 
will be adequate. 

Our brandandreputation may suffer from real or perceivedissues involving the labeling andmarketing of our products as "natural.” 

Although the FDA and USDA have each issued statements regarding the appropriate use of the word "natural,” there is no single, U.S. government-regulated definition of the 
term"natural” for use in the food industry. The resulting uncertainty has led to consumer confusion, distrust and legal challenges. Plaintiffs have commenced legal actions against 
a number of food companies that market "natural” products, asserting false, misleading and deceptive advertising, and labeling claims. Should we become subject to similar claims, 
consumers may avoid purchasing products fromus or seek alternatives, even if the basis for the claimis unfounded. Adverse publicity about these matters may discourage 
consumers frombuying our products. The cost of defending against any such claims could be significant. Any loss of confidence on the part of consumers in the truthfulness of 
our labeling or ingredient claims would be difficult and costly to overcome and may significantly reduce our brand value. Uncertainty as to the ingredients used in our products, 
regardless of the cause, may have a substantial and adverse effect on our brand and our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

Our finishedgoods inventory is locatedin a small number of warehouse facilities. Any damage or disruption at a storage facility wouldhave an adverse effect on our business, 
results of operations andfinancial condition. 

Our finished goods inventory is located in a small number of warehouse facilities. A natural disaster, fire, power interruption, work stoppage, or other unanticipated catastrophic 
event at these facilities would significantly disrupt our ability to deliver our products and operate our business. If any material amount of our inventory were damaged, we would 
be unable to meet our contractual obligations and, as a result, our business, results of operations and financial condition would suffer. 

We may be unable to defendour intellectual property. 

Our business could be adversely affected if we are unable to adequately protect our intellectual property. Our current intellectual property consists of trade secret recipes and 
cooking processes for our products and trademarks. We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright and trade secret laws to establish and protect our proprietary rights. We will 
also use technical measures to protect our proprietary rights. We may, however, not be able to secure significant protection for service marks or trademarks that we obtain. Our 
inability to protect our intellectual property fromothers may impede our brand identity and could lead to consumer confusion. 
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Our intellectual property rights are valuable, andany inability to protect them couldreduce the value of our services andbrand. 

Our business is largely based upon our recipes, which are trade secrets and are not patentable. We may be unable to keep other companies fromcopying our recipes, or we may be 
subject to legal actions alleging intellectual property infringement, unfair competition or similar claims against us. Companies may have intellectual property rights covering aspects 
of our technologies or businesses. Defending ourselves against intellectual property infringement or similar claims would be expensive and would divert management’s attention. 
Additionally, there is no assurance that we would be successful in defending ourselves against such claims. 

Cyberattacks impacting our computer networks or information technology systems couldhave an adverse impact on our business. 

Cyberattacks, including through the use of ransomware, denial of service attacks, malware, computer viruses, and other means for obtaining unauthorized access to or disrupting 
the operation of our computer networks or information technology systems and those of our suppliers and/or vendors, could have an adverse impact on our business. 
Cyberattacks may cause equipment failures, loss of information, as well as disruptions to our or our customers’ operations. Cyberattacks against companies have increased in 
frequency, scope, and potential harmin recent years. While, to date, we have not been subject to cyberattacks that, individually or in the aggregate, have been material to our 
operations, the preventive actions we take to reduce the risks associated with cyberattacks, including protection of our systems and networks, may be insufficient in the future. In 
addition, as our company grows in size, we may become more of a target for these types of attacks. Moreover, the rapid evolution and increased adoption of new technologies, 
such as artificial intelligence, may intensify our cybersecurity risks. 

The inability to operate or use our information technology systems or those of our suppliers or vendors, even for a limited period of time, may result in significant expenses and/or 
a loss of market share. 

Damage to our reputation can adversely impact our business 

Maintaining a positive reputation is important to selling our products. Our reputation could in the future be adversely impacted by a variety of factors including: any failure by us, 
a business partner, or other actors in the supply chain to maintain our standards. Any failure or perception of a failure can result in damage to our reputation, which could in the 
future decrease demand for our products, thereby impacting our business. 

Political andsocial conditions can impact our business 

Political and social conditions in the United States of America could be difficult to predict, impacting our business. The results of elections, and other political conditions 
including: government shutdowns, wars and other military conflicts could impact how existing laws, regulations and government programs or policies are implemented and/or 
result in uncertainty as to how such laws and regulations may change, including environmental and climate change policies, taxes, tariffs, and governmental benefit programs. 

Increases in income tax rates, changes in income tax laws or disagreements with tax authorities may impact our financial performance 

Increases in income taxrates or changes in taxlaws, including how existing laws are interpreted, may impact our financial performance. For example, economic and political 
conditions in the United States may result in significant changes in taxlegislation and regulation. We are subject to regular examinations by numerous taxing authorities with 
respect to income taxes. Pressure to increase taxrevenues in locations where we operate may make resolving taxdisputes more difficult and impact our financial performance. 

Risks RelatedTo Our Securities 

We currently have a limitedtrading volume, which can result in higher price volatility for, andreducedliquidity of, our common stock. 

Our shares of common stock traded on the OTCQB from2013 to July 2021 and on the Nasdaq Capital Market fromJuly 2021 to the present date. While we have upgraded our 
listing, historically there has been limited daily volume of trading in our common stock, which has limited the overall and perceived liquidity of our common stock on that market. 
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A more active trading market for our shares may never develop or be sustained. Active trading markets generally result in lower price volatility and more efficient execution of buy 
and sell orders. The absence of an active trading market increases price volatility and reduces the liquidity of our common stock. As long as this condition continues, the sale of a 
significant number of shares of common stock at any particular time could be difficult to achieve at the market prices prevailing immediately before such shares are offered and, if 
an active market for our common stock does not develop, it may be difficult to sell shares without depressing the market price for the shares, or at all. In addition, in the event that 
an active trading market does not develop, the price of our common stock may not be a reliable indicator of the fair value of our common stock. 

Furthermore, if our common stock ceases to be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market or other national exchange, holders may find it more difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate 
quotations as to the market value of, our common stock, and the market value of our common stock would likely decline. 

You may experience dilution of your ownership interest because of the future issuance of additional shares of our common stock andour preferredstock. 

In the future, we may issue our authorized but previously unissued equity securities, resulting in the dilution of the ownership interests of our present stockholders. We are 
currently authorized to issue an aggregate of 270 million shares of capital stock, consisting of 20 million shares of preferred stock, par value $0.00001 per share and 250 million 
shares of common stock, par value $0.00001 per share. 

We may also issue additional shares of our common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for common stock in connection with hiring or retaining 
employees or consultants, future acquisitions, future sales of our securities for capital raising purposes, or for other business purposes. The future issuance of any such additional 
shares of our common stock or other securities may create downward pressure on the trading price of our common stock. There can be no assurance that we will not be required to 
issue additional shares, warrants or other convertible securities in the future in conjunction with hiring or retaining employees or consultants, future acquisitions, future sales of 
our securities for capital raising purposes or for other business purposes, including at a price (or exercise prices) below the price at which shares of our common stock are trading. 

If andwhen a larger trading market for our common stock develops, the market price of our common stock is still likely to be highly volatile andsubject to wide fluctuations, 
andyou may be unable to resell your shares at or above the price at which you acquiredthem. 

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to a number of factors that are beyond our control, 
including, but not limited to: 

• variations in our revenue and operating expenses; 

• market conditions in our industry and the economy as a whole; 

• actual or expected changes in our growth rates or our competitors’ growth rates; 

• announcements of innovations or new products or services by us or our competitors; 

• announcements by the government relating to regulations that govern our industry; 

• sales of our common stock or other securities by us or in the open market; and 

• changes in the market valuations of other comparable companies. 

In addition, if the market for food industry stocks or the stock market in general experiences loss of investor confidence, the trading price of our common stock could decline for 
reasons unrelated to our business, financial condition or operating results. The trading price of our shares might also decline in reaction to events that affect other companies in 
our industry, even if these events do not directly affect us. Each of these factors, among others, could harmthe value of your investment in our common stock. In the past, 
following periods of volatility in the market, securities class-action litigation has often been instituted against companies. Such litigation, if instituted against us, could result in 
substantial costs and diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition. 

We do not expect to pay dividends. 
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We have never declared or paid any cash dividends or distributions on our common stock. We currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to support operations and to 
finance expansion, and therefore we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. 

The declaration, payment, and amount of any future dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and will depend upon, among other things, the results of our 
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and capital requirements, and other factors as the Board of Directors considers relevant. There is no assurance that future 
dividends will be paid, and, if dividends are paid, there is no assurance with respect to the amount of any such dividend. If the Company does not pay dividends, the Company’s 
common stock may be less valuable because a return on an investor’s investment will only occur if the Company’s stock price appreciates. 

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about us, our business or our market, or if they change their recommendations regarding our stock 
adversely, our stock price andtrading volume coulddecline. 

The trading market for our common stock will be influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts may publish about us, our business, our market or our 
competitors. If any of the analysts who may cover us change their recommendation regarding our stock adversely, or provide more favorable relative recommendations about our 
competitors, our stock price would likely decline. If any analyst who may cover us were to cease coverage of our company or fail to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose 
visibility in the financial markets, which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline. 

We have identifiedmaterial weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If remediation of these material weaknesses is not effective, or if we identify additional 
material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately or timely report our financial condition 
or results of operations, which may adversely impact investor confidence and, as a result, the value of our common stock. 

In connection with the preparation of our financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial 
reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of our annual or interimfinancial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weaknesses identified generally relate to (1) inadequate 
segregation of duties between the IT and accounting functions, (2) not maintaining adequate support for authorization and approval of certain transactions recorded in the 
Company’s IT systems, including those obtained through electronic data interface, and (3) inadequate documentation of review procedures, including those associated with level 
of precision, investigating and resolving outliers, and evaluating the completeness and accuracy of information produced by the entity, including those obtained fromcertain 
service organizations which require that complementary user entity controls are suitably designed and operating effectively. 

We may not be able to fully remediate the identified material weaknesses. If the steps we take do not correct the material weaknesses in a timely manner, we will be unable to 
conclude that the Company maintains effective internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, there could continue to be a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of our financial statements would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. We also may incur significant costs to execute various aspects of our remediation 
plan but cannot provide a reasonable estimate of such costs at this time. 

In the future, it is possible that additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may be identified that we may be unable to remedy before the requisite deadline for these 
reports. Our ability to comply with the annual internal control reporting requirements will depend on the effectiveness of our financial reporting and data systems and controls 
across the Company. Any weaknesses or deficiencies or any failure to implement new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in the implementation or operation of these 
controls, could harmour operating results and cause us to fail to meet our financial reporting obligations, or result in material misstatements in our consolidated financial 
statements, which could adversely impact our business and reduce our stock price. 

If we are unable to conclude that we have effective internal control over financial reporting, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could have 
a material adverse effect on the trading price of our common shares. Failure to remedy any material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, or to implement or 
maintain other effective control systems required of public companies, could also restrict our future access to the capital markets. 
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Item1B. Unresolved Staff Comments. 

None 

Item1C. Cybersecurity. 

Cybersecurity is an important part of our risk management programfor our Board of Directors and management. Our Board of Directors, through the Audit Committee, oversees 
management's approach to managing cybersecurity risks. The Audit Committee, comprised solely of independent directors, is charged with overseeing the Company’s risk 
management program, including cybersecurity matters. 

The Company also maintains a robust cybersecurity infrastructure to safeguard our operations, networks and data through internal management and external service providers. 
Our cybersecurity risk management and strategy processes are led by our Chief Administrative Officer. This individual has over 30 years of prior work experience in various roles 
involving managing information systems and security, developing information security strategy, implementing effective information and cybersecurity programs, as well as a 
degree focusing on computer science. The Chief Administrative Officer is informed about and monitors the prevention, mitigation, detection, and remediation of cybersecurity 
incidents through their management and participation in the Company’s cybersecurity risk management and strategy processes including the operation of our incident response 
plan. This management teammember routinely discusses trends in cyber risks and our strategy with management and reports to the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors 
about cybersecurity threat risks, among other cybersecurity related matters, on a quarterly basis. 

We use a risk-based approach to identify, assess, protect, detect, respond to and recover fromcybersecurity threats. Our information security programincludes, among other 
aspects, antivirus and malware protection, encryption and access control, and employee training. Risks identified by the Chief Administrative Officer and other cybersecurity 
personnel are analyzed to determine the potential impact on us and the likelihood of occurrence. Such risks are continuously monitored to ensure that the circumstances and 
severity of such risks have not changed. 

In addition, we engage independent third-party cybersecurity providers for testing and vulnerability detection. We regularly engage with these providers to aid in the identification 
and remediation of potential threats. We also endeavor to apprise employees of emerging risks and provide security awareness training and supplemental training as needed. 

Material cybersecurity incidents are required to be reported to the Board of Directors. As of the date of this report, we are not aware of any risks fromcybersecurity threats that 
have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. 

Item2. Properties. 

Our principal executive office is located at 25 Branca Road, East Rutherford, NJ 07073. We currently lease 43,250 square feet of space located in East Rutherford, NJ from Joseph 
Branca Partnership, Ltd. for a current rent of $73,325 per month. The lease term runs through February 2030. In addition, we lease an additional 6,413 square feet of space at 355 
Murray Hill Parkway, NJ from CLNAssociates, LLC for a current rent of $9,867 per month. We currently lease 20,188 square feet in a fully contained facility at 148Allen Boulevard, 
Farmingdale, NY from 148 Allen Blvd LLC for production and distribution of T&L Creative Salads and Olive Branch products. This property is owned by Anthony Morello, Jr., 
President of T&L, as well as individuals related to Mr. Morello. This lease term is through November 30, 2031 with the option to extend the lease for two additional ten-year terms 
with current rent of $20,200 per month. In addition, we lease 10,000 square feet of space at 155-BAllen Blvd, NYfrom1320 Entertainment Inc. for a current rate of $17,166 per month. 
The lease termruns through April 30, 2029. 

Item3. Legal Proceedings. 

We are not currently involved in any material litigation. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-
regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the executive officers of our Company or any of our subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting our Company, 
our common stock, any of our subsidiaries or of our Company’s or our Company’s subsidiaries’officers or directors in their capacities as such, in which an adverse decision could 
have a material adverse effect. 

Item4. Mine Safety Disclosures. 

Not applicable. 
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PART II 

Item5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. 

(a)Market Information 

Our shares of common stock are currently quoted on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "MAMA.” FromJuly 2021 to July 2023 shares of our common stock were quoted 
on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "MMMB." 

(b)Holders 

As of April 7, 2025, there were approximately 43 record holders of our common stock and there were 37,596,000 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding. This figure 
does not take into account those shareholders whose certificates are held in the name of broker-dealers or other nominees. 

(c) Dividends 

Series B Preferred Stock . The holders of Series B Preferred Stock, while outstanding, were entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds 
legally available for such purpose, an accruing cumulative dividend, in preference to any dividend on the common stock, at an annual rate of eight percent (8%) of the Original 
Purchase Price, payable monthly. As of January 31, 2025 there are no shares of Series B Preferred stock issued and outstanding. 

Common Stock. The declaration of any future cash dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and depends upon our earnings, if any, our capital requirements and 
financial position, general economic conditions, and other pertinent conditions. We have not paid any cash dividends to the holders of our common stock, and it is not our present 
intention to pay any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future, but rather to reinvest earnings, if any, in our business operations. 

Item6. [Reserved] 

Item7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION OF OUR PLAN OF OPERATION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND RELATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT. THIS DISCUSSION CONTAINS FORWARD-
LOOKINGSTATEMENTS THAT RELATE TO FUTURE EVENTS OR OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE. THESE STATEMENTS INVOLVE KNOWN AND UNKNOWN 
RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY CAUSE OUR ACTUAL RESULTS, LEVELS OF ACTIVITY, PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS TO BE 
MATERIALLYDIFFERENT FROM ANYFUTURE RESULTS, LEVELS OF ACTIVITY, PERFORMANCE ORACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BYTHESE FORWARD-
LOOKINGSTATEMENTS. THESE RISKS AND OTHER FACTORS INCLUDE, AMONGOTHERS, THOSE LISTED UNDER "FORWARD-LOOKINGSTATEMENTS” AND "RISK 
FACTORS” AND THOSE INCLUDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT. 

Overview 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. ("Mama’s,” "Mama’s Creations” or the "Company”) is a leading marketer and manufacturer of fresh deli prepared foods, found in over 10,000 grocery, 
mass, club and convenience stores nationally. The Company’s broad product portfolio, born from MamaMancini’s rich history in Italian foods, now consists of a variety of high-
quality, fresh, clean and easy to prepare foods to address the needs of both our consumers and retailers. Our vision is to become a one-stop-shop deli solutions platform, 
leveraging vertical integration and a diverse family of brands to offer a wide array of prepared foods to meet the changing demands of the modern consumer. 
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Results of Operations for the Years EndedJanuary 31, 2025 and2024 

The following table sets forth the summary of the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended January 31, 2025 and 2024 (in thousands): 

For the Years Ended 
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 

Net Sales $ 123,328 $ 103,284 
Gross Profit $ 30,533 $ 30,333 
Operating Expenses $ 25,656 $ 21,443 
Other Income (Expenses) $ (171) $ (544) 
Income TaxProvision $ (995) $ (2,008) 
Income fromequity method investment in Chef Inspirational Foods, LLC $ — $ 223 
Net Income $ 3,711 $ 6,561 

For the years ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, the Company reported net income of approximately $3.7 million and $6.6 million, respectively. The change in net income between the 
years ended January 31, 2025 and 2024 reflects strong revenue growth offset by manufacturing inefficiencies related to the capital improvement project at the Company's 
Farmingdale, New York facility and increased costs of commodities, primarily the cost of chicken, and other materials. 

Net Sales: Net Sales increased by approximately 19% to $123.3 million for the year ended January 31, 2025, from $103.3 million for the year ended January 31, 2024. The increase is 
due to higher volume of sales of existing products due to higher production capacity, introductions at new customers, introduction of new products at existing customers and 
successful pricing actions to recover the increased cost of commodities. 

Gross Profit: The gross profit margin was 25% and 29% for the years ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The decrease in gross profit margin is due to inefficiencies 
related to the capital improvement project at the Company's Farmingdale, New York facility and increased costs of commodities, primarily chicken, and other materials. 

Operating Expenses: Operating expenses increased by 20% during the year ended January 31, 2025, as compared to the year ended January 31, 2024. Operating expenses as a 
percentage of sales remained relatively consistent at 21% in both fiscal year 2025 and 2024. The approximate $4.2 million increase in total operating expenses is primarily attributable 
to the following: 

• Advertising expenses increased by approximately $1.1 million due to new digital strategies and an enhanced focus on marketing to help drive increased velocities of our 
existing products; 

• One-time legal settlement expense of approximately $900 thousand, due to the Settlement Agreement with directors; 

• Commission and royalty expenses rose by approximately $568 thousand due to increased sales; 

• Professional fees increased by approximately $474 thousand due to increased corporate activity due to the growth of the Company and fees associated with Sarbanes-Oxley 
404(b) implementation; 

• Amortization of intangible assets increased by approximately $463 thousand due to the CIF Acquisition in the prior fiscal year; 

• Office and computer-related expenses increased by approximately $300 thousand due to growth of the company, increased office space, and investment in new software to 
drive efficiencies; 

• Travel-related expenses increased by approximately $170 thousand, due to a larger sales teamand increased travel to national retailers; 

• Freight-related expenses increased by approximately $71 thousand due to increased sales offset by load-sharing between the Company's two manufacturing facilities; and 
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• Insurance expenses decreased by approximately $204 thousand due to consolidation of policies. 

Other Income (Expenses): Other expenses decreased by approximately $373 thousand to approximately $171 thousand for the year ended January 31, 2025, as compared to 
approximately $544 thousand for the year ended January 31, 2024. The decrease is mainly due to a decrease in net interest expense of approximately $290 thousand, which was a 
result of lower debt balances outstanding as well as higher interest earned on Company cash balances. 

Liquidity andCapital Resources 

We finance our operations with internally generated funds, supplemented by credit arrangements with third parties, and, potentially, capital market financing. 

Working Capital: 

The following table summarizes total current assets, liabilities and working capital at January 31, 2025 compared to January 31, 2024 (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 Change 
Current Assets $ 21,877 $ 23,566 $ (1,689) 
Current Liabilities 17,025 16,690 335 
Working Capital $ 4,852 $ 6,876 $ (2,024) 

As of January 31, 2025, we had working capital of approximately $4.9 million as compared to working capital of approximately $6.9 million as of January 31, 2024, a decrease of 
approximately $2.0 million. The decrease in working capital is primarily attributable to a decrease in cash of approximately $3.9 million, which was used to purchase approximately 
$5.1 million of property plant and equipment, an increase in operating lease liabilities of approximately $414 thousand, and an increase in Promissory notes – related parties of 
approximately $300 thousand, offset by an increase in inventory of approximately $1.5 million due to increased sales, and a decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of 
approximately $373 thousand due to lower accrued taxes. 

Long-term Requirements: 

As of January 31, 2025, we have $0 outstanding under our Line of Credit Agreement, with a maximum capacity of $5.5 million, and approximately $2.9 million outstanding under our 
Term Loan Agreement with M&T Bank (the "Term Loan Agreement"). The Term Loan Agreement has a maturity date of January 17, 2027. In addition, we have payments of 
$750 thousand (plus accrued interest) due on December 29, 2025 pursuant to promissory notes issued to the sellers of T&L Creative Salads ("T&L") and Olive Branch LLC ("Olive 
Branch"), as discussed in Item 8, Note 6. In addition, we have a promissory note with a balance of $1.5 million with the sellers of CIF as discussed in Item 8, Note 6. This note is 
payable in common stock on June 28, 2025. We also have operating leases for offices and other facilities used for our operations, and finance leases comprised primarily of 
machinery and equipment, as discussed in Item8, Note 11. 

Cash Flows: 

The following table summarizes the key components of our cash flows for the years ended January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024 (in thousands). 

For the Years EndedJanuary 31, 
2025 2024 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 5,177 $ 11,621 
Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities (5,095) (1,432) 
Net Cash (Used in) Financing Activities (3,954) (3,545) 
Net changes in cash (3,872) 6,644 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 11,022 4,378 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 7,150 $ 11,022 
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Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended January 31, 2025 was approximately $5.2 million compared to net cash provided by operating activities for the year 
ended January 31, 2024 of approximately $11.6 million. Net income for the years ended January 31, 2025 and 2024 was approximately $3.7 million and $6.6 million, respectively. 
During the year ended January 31, 2025, net income was affected by non-cash adjustments of approximately $2.9 million and by changes in operating activities which used cash of 
approximately $1.4 million. During the year ended January 31, 2024, net income was affected by non-cash adjustments of approximately $2.8 million and changes in operating 
activities which provided cash of approximately $2.2 million. 

Net cash used in investing activities for the years ended January 31, 2025 was approximately $5.1 million as compared to approximately $1.4 million for the year ended January 31, 
2024. For the year ended January 31, 2025, the Company used cash of approximately $5.1 million to purchase new machinery and equipment. For the year ended January 31, 2024, 
the cash used in investing activities consisted of approximately $786 thousand to purchase new machinery and equipment and $646 thousand for the acquisition of the remaining 
interest in CIF. 

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended January 31, 2025 was approximately $4.0 million as compared to $3.5 million for the year ended January 31, 2024. During the 
year ended January 31, 2025, the Company had payments on the term loan, related party loans, and finance lease liabilities of approximately $1.7 million, $2.0 million, and $397 
thousand, respectively. During the year ended January 31, 2024, the Company had payments on the term loan, line of credit, related party loans, and finance lease liabilities of 
approximately $1.7 million, $890 thousand, $750 thousand, and $272 thousand, respectively. 

Although the expected revenue growth and control of expenses lead management to believe that it is probable that the Company’s cash resources will be sufficient to meet its cash 
requirements through at least the next twelve months, based on current and projected levels of operations, the Company may require additional funding to finance growth and 
achieve its strategic objectives. If such financing is required, there can be no assurance that financing will be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to the Company, if at all. 
In the event funding is not available on reasonable terms, the Company might be required to change its growth strategy and/or seek funding on an alternative basis, but there is no 
guarantee it will be able to do so. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 2 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information regarding recently issued accounting 
pronouncements. 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("US GAAP”) requires us to make 
estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and related notes. Critical accounting estimates are those estimates that, in 
accordance with GAAP, involve a significant level of estimation uncertainty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on our consolidated financial 
statements. Management has determined that our most critical accounting estimates are those relating to the fair value of stock-based compensation, impairment of goodwill and 
intangible assets, and estimates for unrealized returns, discounts, and other allowances that are netted against revenue. Although we believe that the estimates we use are 
reasonable, actual results reported in future periods could differ materially from those estimates. The following is a summary of certain accounting estimates we consider critical. 
For further discussion about our accounting policies, see Note 2 "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to our consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in 
this Annual Report. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is the excess of the consideration paid for a business over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets are 
not amortized. Instead, these assets are reviewed at least annually for impairment. The Company has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is 
necessary to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. However, the Company may elect to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test even if no indications of a 
potential impairment exist. 

When performing its quantitative annual goodwill impairment test, the Company is comparing the fair value with its carrying amount. The Company would recognize an impairment 
charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value; however, the loss recognized would not exceed the total amount of goodwill. Additionally, the 
Company considers income taxeffects fromany tax-deductible goodwill on the carrying amount when measuring the 
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goodwill impairment loss, if applicable. The fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow methodologies, as well as considering third party market value indicators. The 
Company’s use of a discounted cash flow methodology includes estimates of future revenue based upon budgets and projections. The Company also develops estimates for 
future levels of gross and operating profits and projected capital expenditures. The Company’s methodology also includes the use of estimated discount rates based upon 
industry and competitor analysis as well as other factors. Calculating the fair value requires significant estimates and assumptions by management. Should the estimates and 
assumptions regarding the fair value of the reporting units prove to be incorrect, the Company may be required to record impairments to its goodwill in future periods and such 
impairments could be material. 

As of January 31, 2025, there were no impairment losses recognized for goodwill. 

Other Intangibles 

Amortizable intangible assets, including tradenames and trademarks, are amortized on a straight-line basis over 3 years. Customer relationships are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over 4 to 5 years. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with FASB Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). 

The Company’s sales are primarily generated from the sale of finished products to customers. Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied, and the 
promised goods have been transferred. Control transfers when the product is shipped or delivered based upon applicable shipping terms. For each contract, the Company 
considers the transfer of product to be the performance obligation. Although some payment terms may be extended, generally the Company’s payment terms are approximately 15-
30 days. Accordingly, there is no significant financing components to consider when determining the transaction price. The Company elected to treat shipping and handling 
activities as fulfillment activities, and the related costs are recorded as selling expenses in selling, general and administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. 

The Company promotes its products with trade incentives and promotions. These programs include discounts, slotting fees, coupons, rebates, in-store display incentives and 
volume-based incentives. The trade incentives and promotions are recorded as a reduction to the transaction price based on amounts estimated as being due to customers at the 
end of the period. The Company derives these estimates based on historical experience. The Company does not receive a distinct service in relation to the trade incentives and 
promotions. The Company’s contracts are all short termin nature; therefore, there are no unsatisfied performance obligations requiring disclosure as of January 31, 2025. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model or Monte Carlo simulation to determine the fair value of equity-based grants, excluding restricted stock. In estimating 
fair value, management is required to make certain assumptions and estimates such as the expected life of units, volatility of the Company’s future share price, risk-free rates, future 
dividend yields and estimated forfeitures at the initial grant date. Changes in assumptions used to estimate fair value could result in materially different results. 

Item7A. Qualitative And Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

We are a smaller reporting company as defined in Regulation S-K of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are not required to provide the information under this 
item. 

Item8. Financial Statements. 

Our consolidated financial statements appear at the end of this Annual Report. 

Item9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 

There are no reportable events under this itemfor the year ended January 31, 2025. 
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Item9A. Controls and Procedures. 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Disclosure controls and procedures consist of our controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or 
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that necessary 
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure. Due to the inherent limitations of control systems, not all misstatements may be detected. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, 
any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. These inherent 
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, a control or 
procedure can be circumvented by individual acts of even one person, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. Controls and procedures can 
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the above objectives are met. 

Our management, under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and accounting officer), evaluated 
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of January 31, 2025, at the reasonable assurance level, in ensuring that 
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time 
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as 
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange 
Act. 

Our internal control over financial reporting is a set of processes designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that: 

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the Board of Directors of the 
Company; and 

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to risk that a control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or because of declines in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. 

Our management, under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. In 
making this assessment, they used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO”) in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework (2013). 

Based on the evaluation under such framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of January 31, 2025, due to the 
existence of material weaknesses. 
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A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of a company’s annual or interimfinancial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Our management identified material weaknesses in our 
internal control over financial reporting relating to (1) inadequate segregation of duties between the IT and accounting functions, (2) not maintaining adequate support for 
authorization and approval of certain transactions recorded in the Company’s IT systems, including those obtained through electronic data interface, and (3) inadequate 
documentation of review procedures, including those associated with level of precision, investigating and resolving outliers, and evaluating the completeness and accuracy of 
information produced by the entity, including those obtained fromcertain service organizations which require that complementary user entity controls are suitably designed and 
operating effectively. 

None of the identified material weaknesses resulted in a material misstatement to our annual or interimconsolidated financial statements for the year ended January 31, 2025. 
However, because the underlying deficiencies could have resulted in a material misstatement, management determined that each constitutes a material weakness. 

Our independent registered public accounting firm, UHYLLP, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 
2025. UHYLLP’s report appears on page 28 of this Annual Report on Form10-K. 

ImplementedandPlannedRemediation Measures 

We are committed to establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and promptly remediating the identified material weaknesses. Management 
continues to work to strengthen supporting procedures and documentation to ensure a strong control environment. 

To address the identified material weaknesses, remediation actions are in the process of being implemented during the fiscal year ending January 31, 2026, including the following: 

• review and enhancement of the structure of our organization, including our finance and information technology functions, to clarify roles and responsibilities and ensure 
appropriate segregation of duties; 

• enhance the documentary support for authorization and approval of transactions recorded in the Company’s IT systems, including those obtained through electronic data 
interface; 

• continued evaluation of existing personnel and their roles and responsibilities, with appropriate realignments and supplemental internal and external personnel and 
resources focused on ensuring compliance with our policies and procedures and reliable evidence and documentation of the same. 

Management believes the actions described above will strengthen our internal control over financial reporting and will be sufficient to remediate the identified material weaknesses 
as soon as January 31, 2026. However, there can be no guarantee that such remediation efforts will be sufficient by the end of the current fiscal year or at all. Management will 
continue to monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s procedures and internal control over financial reporting and intends to make further changes as may be necessary or 
appropriate to reasonably ensure their effectiveness. 

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Except as described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

Item9B. Other Information. 

During the three months ended January 31, 2025, no director or officer of the Company adopted, modified or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or "non-Rule 10b5-1 
trading arrangement,” as each termis defined in Item408(a) of Regulation S-K. 

Item9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions That Prevent Inspections. 

None. 
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PART III 

Certain information required by Part III is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the "Proxy Statement"), 
which we intend to file with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after January 31, 2025. Except for those portions specifically incorporated by reference from our 
Proxy Statement, no other portions of the Proxy Statement are deemed to be filed as part of this report. 

Item10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. 

Information about our Executive Officers 

The following table discloses our executive officers as of April 7, 2025. 

Name Age Position 

AdamL. Michaels 48 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Anthony J. Gruber 56 Chief Financial Officer 

Moore (Skip) Tappan 58 Chief Operating Officer 

Steven Burns 64 Chief Administrative Officer and Director 

Adam Michaels was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company effective September 6, 2022 . 

Mr. Michaels is an experienced food industry executive and former management consultant. Prior to joining the Company, Adam worked at Mondelez International, a multinational 
food and beverage company. Over nine years, he held numerous roles with increasing responsibility at Mondelez across Supply Chain, Commercial Sales & Marketing, and 
Strategy. Adam was most recently responsible for M&A and Commercial activities within North American Ventures – a business unit comprised of smaller, high-growth brands. 
Before joining Mondelez, Adamwas a Principal at Booz & Company, a management consulting firm, for seven years, where he specialized in the Food & Beverage sector. 

Adamholds an MBA in Marketing & Management fromColumbia Business School and a BSE in Bioengineering fromthe University of Pennsylvania. 

Anthony J. Gruber was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company in September 2022. Mr. Gruber served as Chief Financial Officer from 2019 to 2021 of De’LonghiAmerica, 
Inc., an appliance manufacturer known for its espresso machines, which is the North American subsidiary of the Italian parent, De’Longhi S.p.A. He successfully restructured the 
Finance function for the 120-employee company with annual revenues of approximately $400 million. 

From2018-2019, he served as Chief Financial Officer of LBM Advantage, Inc., a member-owned lumber and building materials buying cooperative with 500+ members and revenues 
of approximately $2.2 billion. 

From 2014-2017, he served as Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Richemont North America, Inc., which is the North American subsidiary of the Swiss-based 
luxury goods company, with 2017 revenues of approximately $2.0 billion and 2000 employees. Richemont’s Brands include Cartier, Chloe, Dunhill, MontBlanc and Piaget, among 
others. 

From 2005-2014, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of Montblanc North America, LLC, prior to its integration into Richemont North America Inc. He previously served as a 
Senior Accountant with Ernst & Young LLP. 

Mr. Gruber earned a BS, Accounting fromthe University of Bridgeport, Bridgeport, CT. 

Moore (Skip) Tappan was appointed Chief Operating Officer of the Company in September 2024. Mr. Tappan brings over 30 years of broad cross-functional operational experience 
to the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he was Chief Supply Chain Officer at Gordon Food Service. Previously he was Vice President, Supply Chain Northeast Division of 
Walmart. He also served with Campbell Soup Company as Vice President, North American Logistics. Mr. Tappan 
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started his career at Procter & Gamble (P&G), spending over 20 years with the company in roles with increasing responsibilities, leaving as the Distribution Network Leader for its 
North American Beauty/Health & Wellness business. Mr. Tappan holds a BS in Industrial Engineering fromthe University of South Florida – Tampa. 

Steven Burns has been Executive Vice President of the Company since February 1, 2020. He was appointed the Company's Chief Administrative Officer of the Company on 
October 9, 2023. He has over 30 years of experience in investment, management and operations transformation across industries including high-quality and healthy food services, 
real estate, clean and efficient energy sources and healthcare technology. Mr. Burns has served as a director of the Company from February 2010 through the present. Prior to that, 
for a period of 24 years, he worked at and was a senior executive at Accenture, where he led the U.S. Health Insurance Industry Program comprised of approximately 600 
professionals. He also has sat on various financial committees and boards of directors throughout his career. 

Mr. Burns received his B.S. in Business Management fromBoston College in 1982. 

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our directors and officers and other employees, including our principal executive officer and principal 
financial officer. This code is publicly available through the Governance section of our website at https://ir.mamascreations.com.  To the extent permissible under the applicable law, 
the rules of the SEC or Nasdaq listing standards, we intend to post on our website any amendment to the code of business conduct and ethics, or any grant of a waiver from a 
provision of the code of business conduct and ethics, that requires disclosure under the applicable law, the rules of the SEC or Nasdaq listing standards. 

Insider Trading Policy 

We have adopted insider trading policies and procedures governing the purchase, sale, and/or other dispositions of the Company's securities by directors, officers and employees 
that are reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and any listing standards applicable to the Company. A copy of the 
Company's Trading Policy has been filed as Exhibit 19 to this Annual Report on Form10-K. 

Other Information 

The disclosures in the Proxy Statement under the headings "Proposal No. 1 – Election of Directors,” "Corporate Governance,” "How do I submit a stockholder proposal or director 
nomination for the next Annual Meeting,” and, if applicable "Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports” are incorporated into this Itemby reference. 

Item11. Executive Compensation 

Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in the Proxy Statement regarding the compensation of our named executive officers appearing under the heading 
"Executive Compensation” (excluding information under the caption "Pay versus Performance”), and the information regarding compensation of non-employee directors under the 
heading "Director Compensation.” 

Item12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 

Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in the Proxy Statement appearing under the headings "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and 
Management and Related Stockholder Matters” and "Equity Compensation Plan Information.” 

Item13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. 

Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in the Proxy Statement regarding director independence under the heading "Corporate Governance” and the information 
under the heading "Transactions with Related Persons.” 

Item14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. 

Incorporated into this Item by reference is the information in the Proxy Statement under the headings "Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees” and "Audit 
Committee Pre-Approval.” 
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PART IV 

Item15. Exhibits, Financial Statements Schedules 

Exhibit No. Description 

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of MamaMancini’s Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on FormS-1 
filed on May 24, 2011). 

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of MamaMancini’s Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form8-K filed on March 8, 2013). 

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Mama’s Creations, Inc. (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current 
Report on Form8-K filed on August 1, 2023). 

3.4 Second Amended and Restated Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate of Designation (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form8-K filed on September 10, 2015). 

3.5 Series B Preferred Stock Certificate of Designation (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 3.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on FormS-3 filed on 
June 2, 2023). 

3.6 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Mama’s Creations, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed on August 1, 2023). 

4.1 Description of Common Stock (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 
31, 2023). 

10.1+ 2021 Incentive Stock and Award Plan, as Amended and Restated October 17, 2023 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current 
Report on Form8-K filed on October 20, 2023). 

10.2+ Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (Employee) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
on June 5, 2013). 

10.3+ Formof Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form8-K filed on June 5, 2013). 
10.4+ Formof Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form8-K filed on October 

20, 2023). 
10.5+ Formof Performance-Based Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form8-K filed 

on October 20, 2023). 
10.6+ Employment Agreement dated June 21, 2022 by and between the Company and AdamL. Michaels (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.2 to the 

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2023). 
10.7+ Employment Agreement dated September 19, 2022 by and between the Company and Anthony Gruber (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.3 to the 

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2023). 
10.8 Development and License Agreement, by and between Daniel Daugherty and Market Finders Brokerage, Inc., dated as of January 1, 2009 (incorporated by 

reference fromExhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form8-K/A filed on May 8, 2013). 
10.9 Multiple Disbursement Term Loan with M&T Bank, dated as of October 26, 2022 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual 

Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2023). 
10.10 Amended and Restated Revolving Line Note with M&T Bank, dated as of October 26, 2022 (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 

Quarterly Report on Form10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2023). 
10.11 Letter Amendment to the Revolving Line of Credit Loan, dated July 18, 2023 by and between M&T Bank, the Company and T&L Acquisition Corp. 

(incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2023). 
10.12 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated June 28, 2023 by and among the Company, Siegel Suffolk Family, LLC, R&I Loeb Family, LLC, Jeffrey 

Siegel, and Ronald Loeb (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form8-K filed on June 29, 2023). 
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10.13+ Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Moore (Skip) Tappan, III, dated September 3, 2024 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to 
the Company’s Current Report on Form8-K filed on September 9, 2024). 

10.14 Amendment to M&T Credit Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2024 (incorporated from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
August 5, 2024). 

10.15 Form of Settlement Agreement with Directors, dated as of May 15, 2024 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on 
Form8-K filed on May 17, 2024). 

19.1* Insider Trading Policy. 
21.1 List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference fromExhibit 21.1 to the Company's Annual Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2024. 
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 
23.2* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
24.1* Powers of Attorney 
31.1* Certification by the Principal Executive Officer of Registrant pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)). 
31.2* Certification by the Principal Financial Officer of Registrant pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)). 
32.1* Certification by the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
32.2* Certification by the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
97.1 Mama's Creations Compensation Recovery Policy (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 97.1 to the Company's Annual Report on From 10-K for the fiscal 

year ended January 31, 2024. 
101* Financial statements fromthe annual report on Form10-K for the year ended January 31, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, 

formatted in inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language (iXBRL): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
and (vi) the information set forth in Part II, Item9B. 

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document). 

*Filed herewith 

+Denotes management contract or compensatory arrangement 

Item16. Form10-K Summary 

None. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

MAMA'S CREATIONS, INC. 

Date: April 8, 2025 By: /s/ Adam L. Michaels 
Name: AdamL. Michaels 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities 
and on the dates indicated. 

Signature Title Date 

/s/ Adam L. Michaels 
AdamL. Michaels 

Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the 
Board of Directors (principal executive officer) 

April 8, 2025 

/s/ Anthony Gruber 
Anthony Gruber 

Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and accounting officer) April 8, 2025 

* 
Steven Burns 

Director April 8, 2025 

* 
Alfred D’Agostino 

Director April 8, 2025 

* 
TomToto 

Director April 8, 2025 

* 
Dean Janeway 

Director April 8, 2025 

* 
Meghan Henson 

Director April 8, 2025 

* 
Shirley Romig 

Director April 8, 2025 

* 
Lynn Blake 

Director April 8, 2025 

*AdamL. Michaels, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this document on behalf of each of the above-named directors of the registrant pursuant to Powers of 
Attorney duly executed by such persons. 

Date: April 8, 2025 By: /s/ Adam L. Michaels 
AdamL. Michaels 
Attorney in Fact 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGFIRM 

To the Board of Directors and 

Stockholders of Mama’s Creations, Inc. 

Adverse Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

We have audited Mama's Creations, Inc.’s (the Company’s) internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2025, based on criteria established in Internal Control— 
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, because of the effect of the material 
weaknesses described in the following paragraph on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of January 31, 2025, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. 

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Company’s annual or interimfinancial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Management identified material weaknesses due to the 
Company’s lack of sufficient accounting and finance personnel to support and provide appropriate oversight and accountability over the performance of controls. This resulted in 
material weaknesses noted across significant business processes that related to (1) inadequate segregation of duties between the IT and accounting functions, (2) not maintaining 
adequate support for authorization and approval of certain transactions recorded in the Company’s IT systems, including those obtained through electronic data interface, and (3) 
inadequate documentation of review procedures, including those associated with level of precision, investigating and resolving outliers, and evaluating the completeness and 
accuracy of information produced by the entity, including those obtained fromcertain service organizations which require that complementary user entity controls are suitably 



   

                          
               

                        
                        

  

                       
                      

                            
                         

   

                          
                       

                        
                          

      

        

                        
                    

 

designed and operating effectively. 

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the fiscal year 2025 consolidated financial statements, 
and this report does not affect our report dated April 8, 2025, on those financial statements. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets and the 
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of the Company, and our report dated April 8, 2025, expressed an unqualified 
opinion. 

Basis for Opinion 

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Item9A, Controls and Procedures: Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firmregistered with the PCAOB and are required to 
be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and performthe audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Definition andLimitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and 
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procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

/s/ UHY LLP 

New York, New York 

April 8, 2025 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGFIRM 

To the Board of Directors and 

Stockholders of Mama’s Creations, Inc. 

Opinion of the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mama’s Creations, Inc. (the Company) as of January 31, 2025, and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In 
our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of January 31, 2025, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting as of January 31, 2025 based on criteria established in Internal Control–Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated April 8, 2025 expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
because of the existence of material weaknesses. 

We also have audited the adjustments to the fiscal 2024 and 2023 consolidated financial statements of the Company to retrospectively apply the change in accounting related to 
the Company’s adoption of ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280) – Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures as described in Notes 2 and 13. In our opinion, 
such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review or apply any procedures to the fiscal 2024 and 2023 consolidated financial 
statements of the Company other than with respect to the adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the fiscal 2024 and 2023 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our 
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities 
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Critical Audit Matters 

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated 
to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex 
judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the 
critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate. 

Variable Consideration Related to Customer Incentives 

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company recognizes revenue net of estimates for variable consideration related to customer incentives in the form of 
discounts, slotting fees, coupons, rebates, in-store display incentives and volume-based incentives. The estimated portion of variable consideration at period-end amounted to 
$0.6 
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million as of January 31, 2025. Customer incentives are estimated at period-end based on historical experience and assumptions of future promotional activity. 

We identified the auditing of variable consideration related to customer incentives as a critical audit matter. Specifically, variable consideration is estimated based on historical 
experience and assumptions of future promotional activity. Auditing these estimates involved especially challenging and subjective auditor judgment due to the level of 
uncertainty involved in management’s assumptions. 

The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included: 

• Evaluating the appropriateness of the Company’s estimation methodology and testing significant inputs and assumptions used in the calculations; 

• Developing an expectation for estimated variable consideration and the allowance for customer incentives using sales data, historical activity of customer incentives as a 
percentage of revenue, and activity subsequent to period end; and 

• Inquiring and obtaining information frommanagement and sales department representatives to assess historical activity and assumptions of future promotional activity. 

/s/ UHY LLP 

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2024. 

New York, New York 

April 8, 2025 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGFIRM 

To the Board of Directors and 

Stockholders of Mama's Creations, Inc. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited, before the effects of the adjustment to retrospectively apply the change in accounting for ASU 2023-07 Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to 
Reportable Segment Disclosures described in Notes 2 and 13, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mama's Creations, Inc. (the Company) as of January 31, 2024 and 
2023, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended January 31, 2024, and the related notes 
(collectively referred to as the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, before the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively 
apply the change in accounting forASU2023-07 Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures described in Notes 2 and 13 (the 2024 financial 
statements before the effects of the adjustments discussed in Notes 2 and 13 are not presented herein), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company 
as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended January 31, 2024, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments to retrospectively apply the change in accounting for ASU 2023-07 Segment Reporting (Topic 
280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures as described in Notes 2 and 13 and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance about 
whether such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Those adjustments were audited by other auditors.To the Board of Directors and 

Basis for Opinion 

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be 
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to 
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing 
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Critical Audit Matters 

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated 
to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, 
subjective, or complexjudgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and 
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate. We 
determined that there are no critical audit matters. 
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/s/ Rosenberg Rich Baker Berman, P.A. 

We have served as the Company’s auditor from2011 to 2024. 

Somerset, New Jersey 

April 24, 2024 
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Mama's Creations, Inc. 
ConsolidatedBalance Sheets 

(In thousands, except share andper share data) 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 

Assets: 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,150 $ 11,022 
Accounts receivable, net 8,131 7,859 
Inventories, net 4,817 3,310 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,779 1,375 
Total Current Assets 21,877 23,566 

Property, plant, and equipment, net 9,387 4,436 
Intangible assets, net 3,436 4,979 
Goodwill 8,633 8,633 
Operating lease right of use assets, net 3,376 2,889 
Deferred taxasset 258 503 
Security deposits 95 95 
Total Assets $ 47,062 $ 45,101 

Liabilities andStockholders’ Equity: 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12,052 $ 12,425 
Termloan, net of debt discount of $22 and $38, respectively 1,530 1,514 
Operating leases liabilities 848 434 
Finance leases payable 345 367 
Promissory notes – related parties 2,250 1,950 
Total Current Liabilities 17,025 16,690 

Line of credit — — 
Termloan – net of current 1,342 3,003 
Operating leases liability – net of current 2,600 2,515 
Finance leases payable – net of current 1,199 1,062 
Promissory notes – related parties, net of current — 2,250 
Total long-term liabilities 5,141 8,830 

Total Liabilities 22,166 25,520 

Commitments andcontingencies (Note 10 and11) 

Stockholders’ Equity: 
Series A Preferred stock, $0.00001 par value; 120,000 shares authorized; 23,400 issued as of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024, 0 
shares outstanding as of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024 — — 
Series B Preferred stock, $0.00001 par value; 200,000 shares authorized; 0 and 0 issued and outstanding as of January 31, 2025 and 
January 31, 2024 — — 
Preferred stock, $0.00001 par value; 19,680,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding — — 
Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 250,000,000 shares authorized; 37,826,000 and 37,488,000 shares issued as of January 31, 2025 
and January 31, 2024, respectively, 37,596,000 and 37,258,000 shares outstanding as of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024, 
respectively — — 
Additional paid-in capital 24,882 23,278 
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 164 (3,547) 
Less: Treasury stock, 230,000 shares at cost (150) (150) 
Total Stockholders’ Equity 24,896 19,581 
Total Liabilities andStockholders’ Equity $ 47,062 $ 45,101 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Mama's Creations, Inc. 
ConsolidatedStatements of Operations 

(in thousands, except share andper share data) 

For the Years Ended 
January 31, 

2025 2024 2023 

Net sales $ 123,328 $ 103,284 $ 93,188 

Costs of sales 92,795 72,951 73,770 

Gross profit 30,533 30,333 19,418 

Operating expenses: 
Research and development 455 414 135 
Selling, general and administrative 25,201 21,029 16,460 

Total operating expenses 25,656 21,443 16,595 

Income from operations 4,877 8,890 2,823 

Other income (expenses) 
Interest expense (477) (549) (634) 
Interest income 218 — — 
Amortization of debt discount (16) (22) (22) 
Other income 104 27 3 

Total other expenses (171) (544) (653) 

Income before income tax provision andincome from equity methodinvestment 4,706 8,346 2,170 

Income fromequity method investment — 223 143 
Income taxprovision (995) (2,008) (9) 

Net income 3,711 6,561 2,304 

Less: series B preferred dividends — (49) (34) 

Net income available to common stockholders 3,711 6,512 2,270 

Net income per common share 
– basic $ 0.10 $ 0.18 $ 0.06 

– diluted $ 0.09 $ 0.17 $ 0.06 

Weightedaverage common shares outstanding 
– basic 37,427,571 36,814,162 36,093,858 

– diluted 39,418,571 38,381,407 37,313,178 
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See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Mama's Creations, Inc. 
ConsolidatedStatements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 

(in thousands) 

Series A 
PreferredStock 

Shares Amount 

Series B 
PreferredStock 

Shares Amount 
Common Stock 

Shares Amount 
Treasury Stock 

Shares Amount 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings 

(Accumulated 
Deficit) 

Stockholders’ 
Equity 

Balance, January 31, 
2022 - $ - - $ - 35,759 $ - (230) $ (150) $ 20,588 $ (12,329) $ 8,109 
Stock-based 
compensation - - - - - - - - 110 - 110 
Stock issued for the 
exercise of options - - - - 57 - - - 26 - 26 
Stock issued for the 
acquisition of equity 
investment - - - - 502 - - - 700 - 700 
Issuance of Preferred B 
Shares, net of issuance 
costs - - 55 - - - - - 1,300 - 1,300 
Series B Preferred 
dividend - - - - - - - - - (34) (34) 
Net income - - - - - - - - - 2,304 2,304 
Balance, January 31, 
2023 - $ - 55 $ - 36,318 $ - (230) $ (150) $ 22,724 $ (10,059) $ 12,515 
Stock-based 
compensation - - - - 138 - - - 486 - 486 
Stock issued for the 
exercise of options and 
warrants - - - - 213 - - - 68 - 68 
Conversion of Series B 
preferred stock - - (55) - 819 - - - - - -
Series B Preferred 
dividend - - - - - - - - - (49) (49) 
Net income - - - - - - - - - 6,561 6,561 
Balance, January 31, 
2024 - $ - - $ - 37,488 $ - (230) $ (150) $ 23,278 $ (3,547) $ 19,581 
Stock-based 
compensation - - - - 232 - - - 1,099 - 1,099 
Stock issued for the 
exercise of options - - - - 38 - - - 55 - 55 
Issuance of shares for 
director settlement - - - - 68 - - - 450 - 450 
Net income - - - - - - - - - 3,711 3,711 
Balance, January 31, 
2025 - $ - - $ - 37,826 $ - (230) $ (150) $ 24,882 $ 164 $ 24,896 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Mama's Creations, Inc. 
ConsolidatedStatements of Cash Flows 

(in thousands) 



     

    
    

           
   

     
      

       
     
    

      
      
     
     
   

 
     
  
       
   

        

    
   

          

     

    
         
      

      
   
        

      
    

      
       

     

      

          

          

   
     
    

   

       
      
        

       
        
        
            
      

          
        

       

For the Years EndedJanuary 31, 
2025 2024 2023 

CASHFLOWS FROMOPERATINGACTIVITIES: 
Net income $ 3,711 $ 6,561 $ 2,304 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 1,592 1,043 920 
Provision for credit losses — (140) 233 
Amortization of debt discount 16 22 22 
Change in right of use assets (1,585) 348 360 
Amortization of intangibles 1,543 1,080 482 
Stock-based compensation 1,099 436 110 
Allowance for obsolete inventory — 63 — 
Change in deferred taxasset 245 215 (269) 
Income fromequity method investment — (223) (143) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable (272) 2,392 563 
Inventories (1,507) 263 (745) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,341) (540) (174) 
Security deposits — (35) (2) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 79 476 2,191 
Operating lease liability 1,597 (340) (343) 
Net Cash Providedby Operating Activities 5,177 11,621 5,509 

CASHFLOWS FROMINVESTINGACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of fixed assets (5,095) (786) (593) 
Cash paid for acquisition/investment in Chef Inspirational Foods, LLC, net — (646) (500) 

Net Cash (Usedin) Investing Activities (5,095) (1,432) (1,093) 

CASHFLOWS FROMFINANCINGACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds fromSeries B preferred stock offering — — 1,365 
Payment of stock offering costs — — (66) 
Cash paid for financing fees — — (27) 
Repayment of termloan (1,662) (1,652) (1,293) 
(Repayment) borrowings of line of credit, net — (890) 125 
Repayment of termloan - related party (1,950) (750) (750) 
Repayment of finance lease obligations (397) (272) (235) 
Payment of Series B Preferred dividends — (49) (34) 
Proceeds fromexercise of options 55 68 26 
Net Cash (Usedin) Financing Activities (3,954) (3,545) (889) 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash (3,872) 6,644 3,527 

Cash andcash equivalents - Beginning of Period 11,022 4,378 851 

Cash andcash equivalents - Endof Period $ 7,150 $ 11,022 $ 4,378 

SUPPLEMENTARYCASHFLOW INFORMATION: 
Cash Paid During the Period for: 
Income taxes $ 1,477 $ 1,620 $ 32 
Interest $ 427 $ 654 $ 634 

SUPPLEMENTARYDISCLOSUREOF NON-CASHINVESTINGAND FINANCINGACTIVITIES: 
Finance lease asset additions $ 511 $ 1,270 $ 72 
Related party loan to finance acquisition $ — $ 2,700 $ — 
Right of use asset recognized $ 2,119 $ — $ — 
Write-off of right of use asset $ 1,021 $ — $ — 
Issuance of stock for director settlement $ 450 $ — $ — 
Non-cash consideration paid in common stock for equity method investment $ — $ — $ 700 
Non-cash deposits on prepaid additions $ — $ 385 
Receipt of fixed assets for deposits previously paid $ 937 $ — $ — 
Settlement of liability in common stock $ — $ 50 $ — 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Mama's Creations, Inc. 
Notes to ConsolidatedFinancial Statements 

January 31, 2025 

Note 1 - Nature of Operations andBasis of Presentation 

Nature of Operations 

Mama's Creations, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the "Company”), (formerly known as MamaMancini's Holdings, Inc. and Mascot Properties, Inc.) was organized on July 22, 
2009 as a Nevada corporation. The Company has a fiscal year-end of January 31. 

Our subsidiary, MamaMancini’s Inc. ("MamaMancinis”), is a marketer, manufacturer and distributor of beef and turkey meatballs with sauce, grilled, roasted and breaded chicken, 
sausage & peppers, and other similar meats and sauces. In addition, the Company continues to diversify its product line by introducing new products such as ready-to-serve 
meals, single-size pasta and rice bowls, bulk deli, and packaged refrigerated protein products. MamaMancini's products feature many all-natural meals that were submitted to the 
United States Department of Agriculture (the "USDA”) and approved as all-natural. The USDA defines "all-natural" as a product that contains no artificial ingredients, coloring 
ingredients or chemical preservatives and is minimally processed. 

Our Subsidiary T&LAcquisition Corp. is a premier gourmet food manufacturer based in New York. T&LAcquisition Corp. DBA T&L Creative Salads ("T&L”) and Olive Branch 
("OB”), offers a full line of foods for retail food chains and club stores, delis, bagel stores, caterers and provision distributors. T&L uses high-quality meats, seafood and 
vegetables, prepared to meet the standards set forth by the USDA and the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"). Olive Branch concentrates on selling olives, olive mixes, and 
savory products to large retail customers, primarily in pre-packaged containers. 

On June 28, 2022, the Company acquired a 24% minority interest in Chef Inspirational Foods, LLC ("CIF”), a leading developer, innovator, marketer and sales company selling 
prepared foods, for an investment of $1.2 million. The investment consists of $500 thousand in cash and $700 thousand in the Company’s common stock. The acquisition of the 
interest in CIF was accounted for under the equity method of accounting for investments up until the Company acquired the remaining interest of CIF. On June 28, 2023, the 
Company completed the acquisition of the remaining 76% of CIF, in accordance with the terms of the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated June 28, 2023 by and among 
the Company, Siegel Suffolk Family, LLC, and R&I Loeb Family, LLC (the "Sellers”) for approximately $3.7 million, including approximately $1.0 million in cash at closing and a 
$2.7 million promissory note (the "CIF Acquisition"). The promissory note required a principal payment of $1.2 million in cash on the first anniversary of the closing date (which 
was made during the year ended January 31, 2025), and a payment of $1.5 million in common stock of the Company on the second anniversary of the closing date. 

The following presents the unaudited results of operations for the period June 28, 2022 (minority interest acquisition date) through January 31, 2023 and from February 1, 2023 
through June 28, 2023 (CIF Acquisition date) of CIF (in thousands). 

For the Period 
February 1, 2023 

through 
June 28, 2023 

For the Period 
June 28, 2022 

through 
January 31, 2023 

Revenues $ 13,721 $ 18,238 
Net income $ 931 $ 598 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

The Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. 
GAAP”) and include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries as of the reporting period ending dates and for the reporting periods. All intercompany 
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain amounts in the prior years have been reclassified to conformto the current year presentation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions impact, among others, the following: allowance for credit losses, the fair value 
of stock-based compensation, inventory reserves, impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, and estimates for unrealized returns, discounts, and other variable considerations 
that are netted against revenue. 

Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a condition, situation or set of 
circumstances that existed at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which management considered in formulating its estimate, could change in the near termdue to one 
or more future confirming events. Accordingly, the actual results could differ significantly fromour estimates. 

Risks and Uncertainties 

The Company operates in an industry that is subject to intense competition and changes in consumer demand. The Company’s operations are subject to significant risk and 
uncertainties including financial and operational risks including the potential risk of business failure. 

The Company has experienced, and in the future expects to continue to experience, variability in sales and earnings. The factors expected to contribute to this variability include, 
among others, (i) the cyclical nature of the grocery industry, (ii) general economic conditions in the various local markets in which the Company competes, including a potential 
general downturn in the economy, and (iii) the volatility of prices pertaining to food and beverages in connection with the Company’s distribution of the product. These factors, 
among others, make it difficult to project the Company’s operating results on a consistent basis. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an origianal maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The majority of the Company’s cash and 
cash equivalents are held at one financial institution, which at January 31, 2025, exceeded insured amounts by approximately $6.2 million. The Company believes it mitigates such 
risk by having this cash held by a major financial institution. 

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses 

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. The Company generally does not require collateral to support customer 
receivables. Estimated product returns are immaterial. Management assesses the collectability of outstanding customer invoices, and maintains an allowance resulting from the 
expected non-collection of customer receivables. In estimating this reserve, management considers factors such as historical collection experience, customer creditworthiness, 
specific customer risk, and current and expected general economic conditions. Customer balances are written off after all collection efforts are exhausted. As of January 31, 2025 
and January 31, 2024, the reserve for uncollectible accounts was approximately $93 thousand and $93 thousand, respectively. For the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 
the Company wrote off approximately $0 thousand, $140 thousand, and $0 thousand, respectively, against the allowance for credit losses established. 

Inventories 

The Company values its inventory at the lower of cost or net realizable value ("NRV”). NRV is defined as estimated selling prices less costs of completion, disposal, and 
transportation. The cost of inventory is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods inventories includes ingredients, direct labor, freight-in for 
ingredients, and indirect production and overhead costs. The Company monitors its inventory to identify excess or obsolete items on hand. 
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The Company reviews inventory quantities on hand and records a provision for excess and obsolete inventory based primarily on selling prices, indications fromcustomers based 
upon current price negotiations, and purchase orders. In addition, and as necessary, specific reserves for future known or anticipated events may be established. As of January 31, 
2025 and January 31, 2024, the reserve for obsolete inventory was approximately $95 thousand and $95 thousand, respectively. 

Inventories by major category are as follows (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Raw materials and packaging $ 1,654 $ 1,159 
Work in process 723 237 
Finished goods 2,440 1,914 
Total inventories, net $ 4,817 $ 3,310 

Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. 

Asset lives for financial statement reporting of depreciation are: 

Machinery and equipment 2-7 years 
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 years 
Leasehold improvements * 

(*) Amortized on a straight-line basis over the termof the lease or the estimated useful lives, whichever period is shorter. 

Upon sale or retirement of property and equipment, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 

The Company reviews the recoverability of property, plant and equipment when circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset or asset class may not be recoverable. 
Indicators of impairment could include, among other factors, significant changes in the business environment, the planned closure of a facility, or deterioration in operating cash 
flows. Considerable management judgment is necessary to evaluate the impact of operating changes and to estimate future cash flows. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance 
which do not substantially improve or extend the useful life of an asset are expensed as incurred. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is the excess of the consideration paid for a business over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets are 
not amortized. Instead, these assets are reviewed at least annually for impairment. The Company has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is 
necessary to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. However, the Company may elect to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test even if no indications of a 
potential impairment exist. 

When performing its quantitative annual goodwill impairment test on January 31, 2025, the Company is comparing the fair value with its carrying amount. The Company would 
recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value; however, the loss recognized would not exceed the total amount of goodwill. 
Additionally, the Company considers income taxeffects fromany tax-deductible goodwill on the carrying amount when measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if applicable. The 
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow methodologies, as well as considering third-party market value indicators. The Company’s use of a discounted cash flow 
methodology includes estimates of future revenue based upon budgets and projections. The Company also develops estimates for future levels of gross and operating profits and 
projected capital expenditures. The Company’s methodology also includes the use of estimated discount rates based upon industry and competitor analysis as well as other 
factors. Calculating the fair value 
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requires significant estimates and assumptions by management. Should the estimates and assumptions regarding the fair value of the reporting units prove to be incorrect, the 
Company may be required to record impairments to its goodwill in future periods and such impairments could be material. 

As of January 31, 2025 and 2024, there were no impairment losses recognized for goodwill. 

Other Intangibles 

Other intangibles consist of trademarks, trade names and customer relationships. Intangible asset lives for financial statement reporting of amortization are: 

Tradenames and trademarks 3 years 
Customer relationships 4 - 5 years 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair value is an exit price, representing the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or 
liability. 

The carrying value of the Company’s short-term financial instruments, such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable, approximate fair value due 
to the immediate or short-termmaturity of these instruments. 

The interest rate on the Company’s line of credit and notes payable has a variable component, which is reflective of the market for such instruments at any given date, and as such 
the carrying value of the debt approximates its fair value. 

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are measured using the fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. The levels of the fair value 
hierarchy are: 

Level 1: observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and 

Level 3: unobservable inputs for which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring the Company to develop its own assumptions. 

Financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

The Company's financial assets that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024 were as follows (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Cash equivalents $ 6,842 $ — $ — $ 6,842 $ 10,886 $ — $ — $ 10,886 
Total $ 6,842 $ — $ — $ 6,842 $ 10,886 $ — $ — $ 10,886 

Research and Development 

Research and development is expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses for the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 were approximately $455 thousand, 
$414 thousand, and $135 thousand, respectively. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). 
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The Company’s sales are primarily generated from the sale of finished products to customers. Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied, and the 
promised goods have been transferred. Control transfers when the product is shipped or delivered based upon applicable shipping terms. For each contract, the Company 
considers the transfer of product to be the performance obligation. Although some payment terms may be extended, generally the Company’s payment terms are approximately 15-
30 days. Accordingly, there are no significant financing components to consider when determining the transaction price. The Company elected to treat shipping and handling 
activities as fulfillment activities, and the related costs are recorded as selling expenses in selling, general and administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. 

The Company promotes its products with trade incentives and promotions. These programs include discounts, slotting fees, coupons, rebates, in-store display incentives and 
volume-based incentives. The trade incentives and promotions are recorded as a reduction to the transaction price based on amounts estimated as being due to customers at the 
end of the period. The Company derives these estimates based on historical experience. The Company does not receive a distinct service in relation to the trade incentives and 
promotions. The Company’s contracts are all short-termin nature; therefore, there are no unsatisfied performance obligations requiring disclosure as of January 31, 2025. 

Reductions in the transaction price attributable to items such as slotting fees, sales discounts, and allowances are accounted for as a direct reduction of revenues as follows (in 
thousands): 

For the Years Ended 
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023 

Gross Sales $ 125,727 $ 106,104 $ 95,420 
Less: Slotting, Discounts, and Allowances 2,399 2,820 2,232 
Net Sales $ 123,328 $ 103,284 $ 93,188 

Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The following table disaggregates gross revenue by significant geographic area for the years ended January 31, 2025, 
2024 and 2023 (in thousands): 

For the Years Ended 
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023 

Northeast $ 35,638 $ 37,189 $ 36,846 
Southeast 33,783 30,183 28,306 
Midwest 26,895 18,609 15,243 
West 29,411 20,123 15,025 
Total gross revenue $ 125,727 $ 106,104 $ 95,420 

Cost of Sales 

Cost of sales represents costs related to the production and manufacturing of the Company’s products. 

Advertising 

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising for the Company are charged to operations as incurred and are included in selling, general and administrative 
expenses. Producing and communicating advertising expenses for the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 were approximately $2.2 million, $1.2 million, and $693 thousand, 
respectively. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company provides compensation benefits in the form of performance stock awards, restricted stock units, stock options, and warrants. The cost of the stock-based 
compensation is recorded at fair value on the date of grant and expensed in our Consolidated Statement of Operations over the requisite service period. 
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Performance stock awards ("PSUs") are granted to certain executive officers. Each performance stock award entitles the participant to earn shares of common stock upon the 
attainment of certain market conditions and certain performance goals over the applicable performance period. The recognition of the compensation expense for the performance 
stock awards is based upon the probable outcome of the market condition and performance conditions based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant. To determine the 
value of PSUs with market conditions for stock-based compensation purposes, the Company used the Monte Carlo simulation valuation model. For each modeling scenario, the 
PSUs' payoff is calculated based on the contractual terms, whereas the fair value of the PSUs is calculated as the average present value of all modeled payoffs. The determination 
of the grant date fair value of PSUs issued is affected by a number of variables and subjective assumptions, including (i) the fair value of the Company’s common stock of $1.17 
and $1.40 at the grant dates, (ii) the expected common stock price volatility over the expected life of the awards of 85.7% and 87.0%, (iii) the term of the awards of 5 years and 5 
years, (iv) risk-free interest rate of 3.7% and 3.4%, (v) there are no expected dividends. Forfeitures are recognized when they occur. There were no performance stock units that 
vested in the year ended January 31, 2025. The Company's performance against the defined goals is re-evaluated on a quarterly basis throughout the performance period and the 
recognition of the compensation expense is adjusted for subsequent changes in the estimated or actual outcome. 

The Company values stock options and warrants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Grants of stock-based payment awards issued to non-employees for services 
rendered have been recorded at the fair value of the stock-based payment, which is the more readily determinable value. The grants are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
requisite service periods, which is generally the vesting periods. If an award is granted, but vesting does not occur, any previously recognized compensation cost is reversed in 
the period related to the termination of service. 

The Company values Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs") based on the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date the grant is issued and recognizes the expense 
related to this value on a straight-line basis over the vesting term. 

For the year ended January 31, 2024, the Company issued 19,960 shares of the Company's common stock, valued at approximately $50 thousand, to certain employees as 
compensation. 

For the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, when computing fair value of stock options issued, the Company has considered the following variables: 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023 
Risk-free interest rate 3.47% N/A 2.8 % 
Expected life of grants 6 years N/A 6.5 years 
Expected volatility of underlying stock 75.5% N/A 85.7 % 
Dividends 0 % N/A 0 % 

The expected option term is computed using the "simplified method” for "plain vanilla” options as permitted under the provisions of ASC 718-10-S99. The Company uses the 
simplified method to calculate expected termof share options and similar instruments. 

The expected stock price volatility for the Company’s stock options was estimated using the historical volatilities of the Company’s common stock and if deemed necessary, 
adjusted for any forward-looking adjustments. Risk-free interest rates were obtained fromU.S. Treasury rates for the applicable periods. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic net income or loss per share attributable to common stockholders excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders during the 
period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income or loss per share reflects potential dilution and is computed by 
dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, which is increased by the number of 
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued. However, if the effect of any additional securities is anti-dilutive (i.e., 
resulting in a higher net income per share or lower net loss per share), they are excluded from the dilutive net income computation. The dilutive effect of stock options, warrants, 
and restricted stock is calculated using the treasury stock method, and the dilutive effect of the Series B Preferred stock is calculated using the if-converted method. 
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in computing basic and diluted net income attributable to common stockholders per common 
share (in thousands, except per share amounts). 

For the Years Ended 
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023 

Numerator: 
Net income attributable to common stockholders - basic $ 3,711 $ 6,512 $ 2,270 
Effect of dilutive securities: — 49 34 

Net income attributable to common stockholders - diluted $ 3,711 $ 6,561 $ 2,304 

Denominator: 
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 37,428 36,814 36,094 
Dilutive securities (a): 
Series B Preferred Stock — — 819 
Stock Options 51 64 355 
Performance Stock Units 1,690 1,195 — 
Restricted Stock Units 250 308 45 

Weighted average common shares outstanding and assumed conversion – diluted 39,419 38,381 37,313 

Basic net income per common share $ 0.10 $ 0.18 $ 0.06 

Diluted net income per common share $ 0.09 $ 0.17 $ 0.06 

(a) - Anti-dilutive securities excluded: 
Stock Options — — 150 
Warrants — — 14 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes are provided in accordance with ASC 740, " Accounting for Income Taxes.” A deferred taxasset or liability is recorded for all temporary differences between financial 
and taxreporting and net operating loss carryforwards. Deferred taxexpense (benefit) results fromthe net change during the period of deferred taxassets and liabilities. 

Deferred taxassets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred taxassets will not be 
realized. Deferred tax assets are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. As of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024, the Company 
recognized a deferred tax asset of approximately $258 thousand and $503 thousand, respectively, which is included in long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The 
Company regularly evaluates the need for a valuation allowance related to the deferred taxasset. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, " Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity" ("ASU 2020-06”), which simplifies an 
issuer’s accounting for convertible instruments by reducing the number of accounting models that require separate accounting for embedded conversion features. ASU 2020-06 
also simplifies the settlement assessment that entities are required to performto determine whether a contract qualifies for equity classification and makes targeted improvements to 
the disclosures for convertible instruments and earnings-per-share (EPS) guidance. Entities can elect to adopt the new guidance through either a modified retrospective method of 
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transition or a fully retrospective method of transition. The Company adopted this guidance effective February 1, 2024.Adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on 
our consolidated financial statements. 

In March 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-02, " Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures" (Topic 323): Accounting for Investment Tax Credit Structures Using the 
Proportional Amortization Method." The amendments in this update permit reporting entities to elect to account for their tax equity investments, regardless of the tax credit 
program from which the income tax credits are received, using the proportional amortization method if certain conditions are met. The Company adopted this guidance effective 
February 1, 2024. Adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

In October 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-06, "Disclosure Improvements." The new guidance clarifies or improves disclosure and presentation requirements on a variety of 
topics in the codification. The amendments will align the requirements in the FASBAccounting Standard Codification with the SEC’s regulations. The amendments are effective 
prospectively on the date each individual amendment is effectively removed from Regulation S-X or Regulation S-K. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact the 
adoption of this ASU will have on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures, which is not expected to be material. 

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures." The new guidance is intended to 
improve reportable segment disclosure requirements primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The amendment is effective retrospectively for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Adoption of this standard led to enhanced segment 
reporting disclosures but did not impact the Company's results of operations, cash flows, or financial condition. The Company adopted ASU 2023-07 during the fiscal year ended 
January 31, 2025. See Note 13, Segment Information in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements for further detail. 

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, " Income Taxes" (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures." The new guidance is intended to enhance the 
transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The amendments in the ASU address investor requests for enhanced income tax information primarily through 
changes to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. The amendment is effective retrospectively for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, on a 
prospective basis, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption of ASU No. 2023-09 will have on the consolidated 
financial statements and related disclosures. 

In March 2024, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Final Rule No. 33-11275, "The Enhancement and Standardization of Climate-Related Disclosures for 
Investors." If such rule remains in effect, the rule will require registrants to provide climate-related disclosures in their annual reports, including, but not limited to, material Scope 1 
and Scope 2 GHGemissions (for large accelerated filers and accelerated filers); governance and oversight of material climate-related risks; the material impact of climate risks on the 
registrant’s strategy, business model, and outlook; risk management processes for material climate-related risks; and material climate targets and goals. Based on our current 
accelerated filer status, certain elements of the rule would be effective for our fiscal year ending January 31, 2027, with the remaining disclosure requirements effective for our fiscal 
years ending January 31, 2028 and 2029. In April 2024, the SEC issued an order staying implementation of such rule, pending the resolution of certain challenges. The outcome of 
ongoing litigation is currently unknown. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of such rule on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures. 

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-03, " Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation Disclosures" (Subtopic 220-40): 
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses." Additionally, in January 2025, the FASB issued ASU No. 2025-01 to clarify the effective date of ASU No. 2024-03. The new 
guidance is intended to improve disclosures about a public business entity's expenses by enhancing specified information about certain costs and expenses at each interim and 
annual reporting period so that investors can better understand an entity’s overall performance, including its cost structure, and assess potential future cash flows. This guidance 
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027, on a retrospective or 
prospective basis, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on the consolidated financial statements and 
related disclosures. 

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-04, " Debt - Debt with Conversion and Other Options" (Subtopic 470-20): Induced Conversions of Convertible Debt 
Instruments." The new guidance clarifies the requirements for determining whether certain settlements of convertible debt instruments should be accounted for as an induced 
conversion 
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or extinguishment of convertible debt. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2025 and interim periods within those annual periods. Early 
adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption ASU No. 2024-04 will have on the consolidated financial statements and related 
disclosures. 

Note 3 - Property, Plant, andEquipment: 

Property and equipment on January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024 are as follows (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Machinery and Equipment $ 7,982 $ 4,437 
Furniture and Fixtures 242 252 
Leasehold Improvements 5,875 2,956 

$ 14,099 $ 7,645 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 4,712 3,209 
Total $ 9,387 $ 4,436 

Depreciation expense was approximately $1.6 million, $1.0 million, and $0.9 million for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively. 

Note 4 – Intangible Assets, Net 

Intangibles, net consisted of the following at January 31, 2025 (in thousands): 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net Carrying 
Amount 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Life (years) 

Customer relationships $ 6,418 $ (2,982) $ 3,436 2.29 
Tradename and trademarks 79 (79) — 0.00 

$ 6,497 $ (3,061) $ 3,436 

Intangibles, net consisted of the following at January 31, 2024 (in thousands): 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net Carrying 
Amount 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Life 

Customer relationships $ 6,418 $ (1,463) $ 4,955 3.29 
Tradename and trademarks 79 (55) 24 0.91 

$ 6,497 $ (1,518) $ 4,979 

Amortization expense for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 was approximately $1.5 million, $1.1 million, and $0.5 million, respectively. 
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We expect the estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the succeeding fiscal years to be as follows (in thousands): 

2026 $ 1,513 
2027 $ 1,464 
2028 $ 459
Total $ 3,436 

Note 5 - Accounts Payable andAccruedExpenses 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are composed of the following (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Trade accounts payable $ 9,051 $ 8,182 
Accrued promotions 485 945 
Accrued employee compensation 1,391 1,890 
Accrued commissions/royalties 686 560 
Other accrued expenses 439 285 
Accrued taxes — 563 
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12,052 $ 12,425 

Note 6 - RelatedParty Transactions 

Promissory Note – RelatedParty 

Upon consummation of the acquisition of T&L in December 2021, the Company executed a $3 million promissory note with the sellers. The promissory note requires annual 
principal payments of $750 thousand, payable on each anniversary of the closing, together with accrued interest at a rate of three and one-half percent (3.5%) per annum. As of 
January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024, the outstanding balance under the note was $750 thousand and $1.5 million, respectively. For the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 
2023 interest expense for this note was approximately $50 thousand, $77 thousand, and $102 thousand, respectively. As of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024, accrued interest 
was approximately $2 thousand and $5 thousand, respectively. 

Lease – RelatedParty 

The Company leases a facility in Farmingdale, NY from 148 Allen Blvd LLC for production and distribution of T&L and Olive Branch products. 148 Allen Blvd LLC is owned by 
Anthony Morello, Jr., President of T&L and various individuals related to Mr. Morello. This lease term is through November 30, 2031 with the option to extend the lease for two 
additional 10-year terms with base rent of approximately $20 thousand per month through December 31, 2026, increasing after that date to approximately $24 thousand through the 
end of the initial lease term. The exercise of optional renewal is uncertain and therefore excluded from the calculation of the right of use asset. Rent expense and other ancillary 
charges pursuant to the lease for the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 was $322 thousand, $343 thousand and $262 thousand, respectively. 

Chef Inspirational Foods, LLC 

As noted above in Note 1, the Company acquired a 24% minority interest in Chef Inspirational Foods, LLC("CIF”) on June 28, 2022 and acquired the remaining interest on June 28, 
2023. For the period from February 1, 2023 to June 28, 2023 the Company recorded sales to CIF of approximately $10.9 million. For the period from June 28, 2022 to January 31, 2023 
the Company recorded sales to CIF of approximately $14.7 million. For the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, the Company recorded commission expenses and 
consulting service expenses of approximately $267 thousand and $424 thousand to CIF. On June 28, 2023 the Company entered into a promissory note with the sellers of CIF.As of 
January 31, 2025 approximately $1.5 million is outstanding on this note. 
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Note 7 - Loan andSecurity Agreement 

M&T Bank 

The Company has a working capital line of credit with M&T Bank for a maximum principal amount of $5.5 million. On July 18, 2023, the Company extended the maturity of the 
working capital line from June 30, 2024 to October 31, 2025 and on July 31, 2024 the Company further extended the maturity date of the line until November 30, 2027. In addition, 
effective December 4, 2023, the Company amended the line of credit to change the rate at which interest accrues on the outstanding balance. Effective December 4, 2023 the 
principal outstanding bears interest at a variable rate per annum based on the Company’s Senior Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio (as defined in the Agreement) established with 
respect to the Borrower as of the date of any advance under the Loan as follows: if the Senior Funded Debt/EBITDA ratio is: (i) greater than 2.25, 3.25 percentage point(s) above 
the applicable one-day (i.e. overnight) SOFR (as defined); (ii) greater than 1.50 but less than 2.25, 2.75 percentage points above the one-day SOFR; (iii) less than or equal to 1.50, 
2.25 percentage points above the one-day SOFR. The facility is supported by a first priority security interest in all of the Company’s business assets and is further subject to 
various affirmative and negative financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with the covenants as of January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024. Advances under the line of 
credit are limited to eighty percent (80%) of eligible accounts receivable (which is subject to an agreed limitation and is further subject to certain asset concentration provisions) 
and fifty percent (50%) of eligible inventory (which is subject to an agreed dollar limitation). All advances under the line of credit are due upon maturity. The outstanding balance 
on the line of credit was $0 thousand as of both January 31, 2025 and January 31, 2024. During the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 the Company incurred interest 
expense of approximately $7 thousand, $47 thousand and $132 thousand to M&T Bank for the line of credit agreement, respectively. During the years ended January 31, 2025 and 
2024 the Company incurred commitment fees of approximately $14 thousand and $12 thousand, respectively. 

On December 29, 2021, the Company entered into a loan with M&T Bank for the original principal amount of $7.5 million, payable in equal monthly principal installments over a 60-
month amortization period (the "Acquisition Note”). The Maturity Date of the Acquisition Note is January 17, 2027. The Acquisition Note was amended effective December 4, 2023 
to change the rate at which interest accrues. Effective December 4, 2023 the interest rate was amended to be based on the Senior Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio (as defined in the 
Acquisition Note). If the Senior Funded Debt/EBITDA ratio is: (i) greater than 2.25, 3.50 percentage point(s) above the applicable Variable Loan Rate; (ii) greater than 1.50 but less 
than or equal to 2.25, 3.0 percentage points of the applicable Variable Loan Rate; or (iii) less than or equal to 1.50, 2.5 percentage points above the applicable Variable Loan Rate; 
provided that in all events the rate shall not be less than the recited percentage point margin over 0%. As of January 31, 2025, the outstanding balance and unamortized discount of 
the Acquisition Note was approximately $2.9 million and $22 thousand, respectively. As of January 31, 2024, the outstanding balance and unamortized discount of the Acquisition 
Note was approximately $4.6 million and $38 thousand, respectively. During the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred interest expense of 
approximately $297 thousand, $450 thousand and $413 thousand for the Acquisition Note, respectively. 

Note 8 - Concentrations 

Revenues andAccounts Receivable 

For the year ended January 31, 2025, the Company’s gross revenue was concentrated in one customer that accounted for approximately 44% of gross revenue. For the year ended 
January 31, 2024, the Company’s gross revenue was concentrated in three customers that accounted for approximately 26%, 11% and 10%, respectively. For the year ended 
January 31, 2023, the Company’s gross revenue was concentrated in two customers that accounted for approximately 25% and 13%, respectively. 

As of January 31, 2025, two customers represented approximately 38% and 16% of total gross outstanding receivables, respectively. As of January 31, 2024, four customers 
represented approximately 20%, 15%, 13% and 10% of total gross outstanding receivables, respectively. 

Note 9 - Stockholders’ Equity 

Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred Stock 

The Company is authorized to issue 20 million shares of preferred stock, $0.00001 par value per share. The Company has designated 120 thousand shares of preferred stock as 
Series A Convertible Preferred stock. As of January 31, 2025 and 2024, no shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding. 
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Series B Preferred 

The Company has designated 200 thousand shares of preferred stock, $0.00001 par value per share, as Series B Preferred Stock. The holders of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be 
entitled to receive, upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the amount of cash, securities or other property to which such holder would be entitled to receive 
with respect to such shares of Series B Preferred Stock if such shares had been converted to common stock immediately prior to such liquidation. 

Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock were entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at an annual rate of eight percent (8%). Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock shall have 
no voting rights. Each share of Series B Preferred stock shall be convertible, at the option of the holder, into shares of common stock at a rate of 1 share of Series B Preferred Stock 
into 15 shares of common stock. 

For the year ended January 31, 2023, the Company sold approximately 55 thousand shares, raising gross proceeds of approximately $1.3 million. 

On June 22, 2023, all the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock converted the shares of Series B Preferred Stock into 819 thousand shares of common stock of the Company. 

As of both January 31, 2025 and 2024, 0 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were outstanding. 

During the year ended January 31, 2025, the Company paid no dividends on Series B Preferred Stock. During the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company paid 
dividends of approximately $49 thousand and $34 thousand, respectively on Series B Preferred Stock. 

Restricted Stock Units 

The fair value of Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs") is determined based on the closing price of the Company's common stock on the grant date. RSUs generally vest on a graded 
basis over three to four years of service. 

A summary of the status of the Company's RSUs is presented below. 

Restricted 
Stock Units 

WeightedAverage 
Grant Date Fair Value 

Non-vested Restricted Stock Units – February 1, 2024 493,078 $ 1.91 
Granted 103,206 $ 7.22 
Vested (228,727) $ 2.78 
Forfeited — $ — 
Non-vested Restricted Stock Units – January 31, 2025 367,557 $ 2.85 

At January 31, 2025, there was approximately $897 thousand of total unrecognized compensation expense related to RSUs, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 1.25 years. During the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 the Company recognized stock-based compensation related to RSUs of an aggregate of 
approximately $595 thousand, $279 thousand, and $50 thousand, respectively, which was recorded to selling, general and administrative expenses or cost of goods sold, depending 
on the nature of the employee on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Of the total 103,206 RSUs issued during the year ended January 31, 2025, 32,040 were issued to the 
Board of Directors, and 71,166 were issued to employees of the Company. 
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Stock Options 

The following is a summary of the Company’s stock option activity: 

Options 
WeightedAverage 

Exercise Price 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual Life 

(in years) 

Aggregate Intrinsic 
Value 

(in thousands) 
Outstanding – February 1, 2024 117,500 $ 1.48 8.36 $ 333 
Granted 38,806 $ 7.57 
Exercised (37,500) $ 1.48 
Expired/forfeited (15,000) $ 1.48 
Outstanding – January 31, 2025 103,806 $ 3.76 8.22 $ 409 
Exercisable – January 31, 2025 0 $ — 

During the year ended January 31, 2025, 37,500 options at a weighted average exercise price of $1.48 per share were exchanged for approximately 38,000 shares of common stock. 
The Company received approximately $55 thousand for the exercise of these options, as a portion of the options were cashless exercised. 

For the years ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, the Company recognized stock-based compensation related to stock options of an aggregate of approximately $45 thousand and 
$65 thousand, respectively, which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of January 31, 2025, 
there was unrecognized stock-based compensation related to stock options of approximately $191 thousand. 

Equity Issuances 

On May 15, 2024, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement with directors Alfred D’Agostino, Steven Burns, Dean Janeway and Thomas Toto (each, a "Director”), 
relating to certain options purported to have been granted by the Company in 2018 and 2019 (the "Purported Options") under prior management that exceeded the availability 
under the Company’s equity plan at the time of the purported grants. 

In exchange for a release of any and all claims or rights related to the Purported Options, the Company agreed to issue each Director a payment of approximately $113 thousand and 
approximately 17 thousand shares of common stock. In connection with the Settlement Agreement and the issuance of the shares, the Company incurred a one-time charge of 
approximately $900 thousand within selling, general and administrative expense. 

Note 10 - Commitments andContingencies 

Litigation, Claims andAssessments 

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of business. Litigation is subject to inherent 
uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm its business. The Company is currently not aware of any such legal 
proceedings or claims that they believe will have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or operating results. 

Licensing andRoyalty Agreements 

On March 1, 2010, the Company was assigned a Development and License agreement (the "Agreement”). Under the terms of the Agreement the Licensor shall develop for the 
Company a line of beef meatballs with sauce, turkey meatballs with sauce and other similar meats and sauces for commercial manufacture, distribution and sale (each a "Licensor 
Product” and collectively the "Licensor Products”). Licensor shall work with Licensee to develop Licensor Products that are acceptable to Licensee. Upon acceptance of a 
Licensor Product by Licensee, Licensor’s trade secret recipes, formulas methods and 

F-23 



  

                    

                    

                                  
                                   
    

                  

                        
               

 

                           
                  

     

  

                       
                        

                              
                           

   

                         
                           
                           
                           

                               
                               

                            
                

  

                             
                          
         

                       
                          

                    

Table of Contents 

ingredients for the preparation and production of such Licensor Products (the "Recipes”) shall be subject to this Development and License Agreement. 

The Exclusive Termbegan on January 1, 2009 (the "Effective Date”) and ends on the 50th anniversary of the Effective Date. 

Per the Agreement, the Royalty Rate shall be: 6% of net sales up to $500 thousand of net sales for each Agreement year; 4% of Net Sales from $500 thousand up to $2.5 million of 
Net Sales for each Agreement year; 2% of Net Sales from $2.5 million up to $20 million of Net Sales for each Agreement year; and 1% of Net Sales in excess of $20 million of Net 
Sales for each Agreement year. 

In order to continue the Exclusive term, the Company shall pay a minimumroyalty of $125 thousand each year. 

The Company incurred approximately $679 thousand, $637 thousand, and $584 thousand of royalty expenses for the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively. 
Royalty expenses are included in selling, general and administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

Purchase Commitments 

On December 20, 2024 the Company entered into a one year purchase commitment to buy six million eighty thousand pounds of chicken, to be delivered in equal weekly 
installments at a fixed price. We recognize liabilities for contingencies and commitments when a loss is probable and estimable. 

Agreements with Placement Agents andFinders 

Spartan Capital, LLC 

The Company entered into a fourth Financial Advisory and Investment Banking Agreement with Spartan Capital Securities, LLC ("Spartan”) effective April 1, 2015 (the "Spartan 
Advisory Agreement”). Pursuant to the Spartan Advisory Agreement, if the Company enters into a change of control transaction during the term of the agreement through 
October 1, 2022, the Company shall pay to Spartan a fee equal to 3% of the consideration paid or received by the Company and/or its stockholders in such transaction. Based on 
this agreement with Spartan, during the year ended January 31, 2023, the Company paid Spartan approximately $36 thousand upon the payment for the 24% minority interest in CIF. 

AGES Financial Services. Ltd. 

On July 6, 2022, the Company executed a Proposed Offering Engagement Letter with AGES Financial Services. Ltd. ("AGES”) to act as a non-exclusive (i) dealer-manager, (ii) 
placement agent and/or (iii) financial advisor for a proposed issuance, or series of issuances, for up to $5 million of the Company’s Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ("Proposed 
Offering”) in a private placement to be conducted by the Company pursuant to the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 506(b) of 
Regulation D promulgated by the Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The period of the Engagement was fromJuly 5, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 

In consideration for its services in the offering, AGES was entitled to a cash fee equal to 4% of the net dollar amount received by the Company from investors sourced by AGES 
plus 5-year warrants to buy common stock of the Company at the rate of 1 warrant for every $100 of such net dollar amount. The Company was responsible for payment of all 
expenses relating to the offering, including, but not limited to costs associated with the registration of any common stock which may be issued upon conversion of the Series B 
Convertible Preferred Stock. For the year ended January 31, 2023, the Company paid AGES approximately $65 thousand. 

Note 11 –Leases 

The Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease at inception. Right of Use ("ROU") assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease 
liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the 
estimated present value of lease payments over the lease term. 

The Company’s leases consist of office space, manufacturing space and machinery and equipment. The Company utilized a portfolio approach in determining the discount rate. 
The portfolio approach takes into consideration the range of the term, the range of the lease payments, the category of the underlying asset and the Company’s estimated 
incremental borrowing rate, which is derived frominformation available at the lease commencement date, in determining the present value of lease 
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payments. The Company also considered its recent debt issuances as well as publicly available data for instruments with similar characteristics when calculating the incremental 
borrowing rates. 

The lease term includes options to extend the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option. Future obligations relating to the exercise of renewal 
options are included in the measurement if, based on the judgment of management, the renewal option is reasonably certain to be exercised. Factors in determining whether an 
option is reasonably certain of exercise include, but are not limited to, the value of leasehold improvements, the value of the renewal rate compared to market rates, and the 
presence of factors that would cause a significant economic penalty to the Company if the option is not exercised. 

Leases with a termof 12months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet, per the election of the practical expedient under ASC842 "Leases." 

The Company recognizes lease expense for these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company recognizes variable lease payments in the period in which the 
obligation for those payments is incurred. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate are initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date, 
otherwise variable lease payments are recognized in the period incurred. 

During the year ended January 31, 2025, the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment of Lease for its offices at 355 Murray Hill Parkway, East Rutherford, NJ. The amended 
lease has a termination date of January 31, 2030. The amended lease has monthly rent of approximately $10 thousand to $12 thousand. In accounting for the lease, the Company 
wrote off its existing right of use asset and lease liability of approximately $124 thousand and recognized a right of use asset of approximately $631 thousand. 

During the year ended January 31, 2025, the Company amended and subsequently extended its lease for 25 Branca Road, East Rutherford, NJ twice. The first amended lease had a 
termination date of August 31, 2024. With the initial amendment of the lease, the Company wrote off approximately $897 thousand of the existing right of use asset and lease 
liability. On August 21, 2024, the Company amended its lease at 25 Branca Road. The amended lease has monthly rent of approximately $36 thousand until February 28, 2026, with a 
renewal option to extend the lease untilAugust 31, 2029. The monthly rent during the renewal option ranges fromapproximately $38 thousand to approximately $42 thousand.As a 
result of this lease the Company recognized a right of use asset and a lease liability of approximately $615 thousand. In addition, on December 26, 2024, the Company amended the 
lease again with an effective date of February 1, 2025. This amended lease expanded the space available to the Company, has a monthly rent from approximately $73 thousand to 
approximately $84 thousand fromFebruary 1, 2025 to January 31, 2030, and required an initial direct payment of approximately $200 thousand. On the effective date of the lease, the 
Company will recognize a right of use asset and lease liability of approximately $4.2 million. 

The components of lease costs were as follows (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Finance Leases 
Depreciation of assets $ 386 $ 257 
Interest on lease liabilities 115 62 
Operating Leases 709 572 

Total net lease cost $ 1,210 $ 891 
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Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Operating Leases 
Operating lease ROU assets $ 3,376 $ 2,889 

Current operating lease liabilities, included in current liabilities $ 848 $ 434 
Non-current operating lease liabilities, included in long-termliabilities 2,600 2,515 
Total operating lease liabilities $ 3,448 $ 2,949 

Finance Leases 
Property and equipment at cost $ 2,551 $ 2,187 
Accumulated depreciation (919) (610) 
Property and equipment, net $ 1,632 $ 1,577 

Current obligations of finance lease liabilities, included in current liabilities $ 345 $ 367 
Finance leases, net of current obligations, included in long-termliabilities 1,199 1,062 
Total finance lease liabilities $ 1,544 $ 1,429 

Supplemental cash flow and other information related to leases was as follows: 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Cash paidfor amounts includedin the measurement of lease liabilities (in thousands) 
Operating cash flows fromoperating leases $ (1,597) $ 340 
Financing cash flows fromfinance leases 397 272 

ROUassets obtainedin exchange for lease liabilities (in thousands) 
Operating leases $ 2,119 $ -
Finance leases 511 1,270 

Weightedaverage remaining lease term (in years) 
Operating leases 5.32 6.57 
Finance leases 4.53 4.49 

Weightedaverage discount rate: 
Operating leases 6.38 % 4.85 % 
Finance Leases 7.74 % 6.74 % 

Maturities of lease liabilities for each of the succeeding fiscal years are as follows (in thousands): 
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For the fiscal years ended Finance Leases Operating Leases 
Total Maturities of Lease 
Liabilities 

2026 $ 454 $ 1,468 $ 1,922 
2027 406 1,512 1,918 
2028 398 1,591 1,989 
2029 302 1,635 1,937 
2030 179 1,486 1,665 
Thereafter 117 519 636 
Total undiscounted future lease payments 1,856 8,211 10,067 
Less: imputed interest (312) (1,258) (1,570) 
Total present value of future lease liabilities $ 1,544 $ 6,953 $ 8,497 

Note 12 - Income Tax Provision 

The Company's income taxprovision / (benefit) consists of the following (in thousands): 

January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 
Federal 
Current $ 764 $ 1,451 
Deferred 192 251 
State andLocal 
Current (14) 342 
Deferred 53 (36) 
Income tax provision $ 995 $ 2,008 

The Company had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of approximately $0.0 million and $0.0 million at January 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, available to offset 
taxable income through 2034. The Company also has state NOLs of approximately $8.0 million and $8.8 million at January 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, available to offset future 
taxable income through 2036. 

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 
The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future generation of taxable income during the periods in which temporary differences representing net future 
deductible amounts become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in 
making this assessment. There was no valuation allowance on the Company's deferred taxassets as of January 31, 2025 and 2024. 

The Company evaluated the provisions ofASC 740 related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements. ASC 740 prescribes 
a comprehensive model for how a company should recognize, present, and disclose uncertain positions that the Company has taken or expects to take in its tax return. For those 
benefits to be recognized, a taxposition must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Differences between taxpositions taken or expected 
to be taken in a taxreturn and the net benefit recognized and measured pursuant to the interpretation are referred to as "unrecognized benefits.” A liability is recognized (or amount 
of net operating loss carry-forward or amount of tax refundable is reduced) for unrecognized tax benefit because it represents an enterprise’s potential future obligation to the 
taxing authority for a taxposition that was not recognized as a result of applying the provisions of ASC740. 

If applicable, interest costs related to the unrecognized tax benefits are required to be calculated and would be classified as "Other expenses – Interest” in the consolidated 
statements of operations. Penalties would be recognized as a component of "Selling, general and administrative expenses.” 
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No interest or penalties on unpaid taxes were recorded during the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023. As of January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, no liability for unrecognized 
taxbenefits was required to be reported. The Company does not expect any significant changes in its unrecognized taxbenefits in the next year. 

We are subject to taxation in the United States and various states. As of January 31, 2025, taxyears for January 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024 are subject to examination by the tax 
authorities. 

The Company’s deferred taxassets and liabilities consisted of the effects of temporary differences attributable to the following (in thousands): 

DeferredTax Assets 
Year Ended 

January 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

January 31, 2024 
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 16 $ 24 
Stock-based compensation 149 52 
Acquisition costs 86 98 
Capitalized start-up and organization costs 8 16 
Right of use liability 802 722 
Inventory 53 47 
Bad debt 22 23 
Capitalized R&D costs 178 114 
Accrued payroll 239 387 
Total deferred taxassets 1,553 1,483 

DeferredTax Liabilities 
Fixed assets 590 225 
Intangibles (80) 46 
Right of use asset 785 709 
Total deferred taxliabilities 1,295 980 
Net deferredtax asset $ 258 $ 503 

The expected taxprovision (benefit) based on the statutory rate is reconciled with actual taxprovision (benefit) as follows: 

Year Ended 
January 31, 2025 

Year Ended 
January 31, 2024 

US Federal statutory rate 21.0 % 21.0 % 
State income tax, net of federal benefit 2.1 3.3 
Adjustments to deferred taxassets (1.1) 0.4 
Non-deductible expenses - restricted stock units - vested (4.9) (1.2) 
Non-deductible expenses - section 162(m) adjustment 3.5 -
Non-deductible expenses - others 0.2 -

Income taxprovision (benefit) 20.8% 23.5% 

Note 13 - Segment Information 

For the years ended January 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 the Company was managed as a single operating segment. The Chief Executive Officer, who is the Company’s Chief Operating 
Decision Maker ("CODM”), reviews financial information on an aggregate basis for purposes of allocating resources and assessing financial performance, as well as for making 
strategic 

F-28 



  

                        

         

   
      

    
     
    

     
     
        
     
     
 
    

   
    
       
  
     

  
   
     

                    

          

 

 

Table of Contents 

operational decisions and managing the organization. As such, the Company has one reportable segment. Additionally, all of the Company’s assets are maintained in the United 
States. 

Segment reporting for the years ended January 31, (in thousands): 

For the Years Ended 
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023 

Net Sales $ 123,328 $ 103,284 $ 93,188 
Costs of sales 92,795 72,951 73,770 
Gross profit 30,533 30,333 19,418 
Less: (A) 
Research and development 455 414 135
Direct Variable Costs (B) 7,798 7,161 7,741 
Other selling, general, and administrative expenses 17,403 13,868 8,719 
Total operating expenses 25,656 21,443 16,595 
Income fromoperations 4,877 8,890 2,823 
Interest expense (477) (549) (634) 
Interest income 218 — — 
Amortization of debt discount (16) (22) (22) 
Other income 104 27 3 
Income fromequity method investment — 223 143 
Income taxprovision (995) (2,008) (9) 
Segment net income 3,711 6,561 2,304 
Reconciliation of profit 
Adjustments and reconciling items — — — 
Consolidated net income $ 3,711 $ 6,561 $ 2,304 

(A) The significant expense categories and amounts align with the information that is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker. 

(B) This category contains commission expenses, royalty expenses, and freight-related expenses. 
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MAMA’S CREATIONS, INC. 
Insider Trading Policy 

and Guidelines with Respect to Certain Transactions in Company Securities 
Effective: January 26, 2024 

Federal and state securities laws prohibit individuals from trading in the securities of a company while they are aware of material information about that 
company that is not generally known or available to the public. Such trading is often referred to as "insider trading.” The purpose of this Insider Trading Policy is to 
prevent insider trading or allegations of insider trading, and to protect the reputation for integrity and ethical conduct of Mama’s Creations, Inc. (the "Company”). 
APPLICABILITYOF POLICY 

A. Material Nonpublic Information means material information (described below) that has either not been disclosed to the public generally, or has 
been disclosed so recently that sufficient time has not yet passed to allow the information to become widely available among investors and the financial community. 

B. Material Information means information about a company that would be expected to affect the investment or voting decision of a reasonable 
investor, or information that could reasonably be expected to have an effect on the price of that company’s securities. Examples of what might be considered 
material information are listed later in this Policy. 

C. Covered Individuals. This Policy applies to: 
1 . Company Personnel. All directors, officers and employees of the Company and any subsidiary ("Company Personnel”), as well as 

members of their immediate families and others living in the same household. 
2. Contractors, Consultants and Advisors. All contractors, consultants and advisors to the Company and any subsidiaries whose work for the 

Company brings them into contact with material nonpublic information. 
3. Related Parties. Any other person or entity, including a trust, corporation, partnership or other association, whose transactions in Company 

securities are directed by any person covered by paragraph C(1) or C(2) or are subject to that person’s influence or control. 
The individuals and entities described in paragraphs C(1), C(2) and C(3) are referred to as "Covered Persons.” 

D. Covered Companies. This Policy applies to trading in the securities of: 

the Company; and 
any other company with which the Company or any subsidiary is or may be doing business, such as customers, suppliers or companies with which a 

major transaction such as a merger, acquisition or divestiture may be or is being negotiated. 

E. Covered Transactions. The securities trading that this Policy covers includes purchases and sales of common stock, options to acquire common 
stock and any other securities the Company may issue from time to time, such as preferred stock, warrants and convertible debentures, and purchases and sales of 
derivative securities relating to the Company’s stock, whether or not issued by the Company, such as exchange-traded options. Trading covered by this Policy may 
or may not include transactions under Company-sponsored plans as follows: 

US.359647572.03 
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1. Stock Option Exercises. The Policy’s trading restrictions do not apply to the purchase of Company stock through the exercise of stock 
options granted by the Company. The trading restrictions do apply to any contemporaneous (such as a sale through a broker as part of a cashless exercise of the 
option) or subsequent sale of Company stock acquired through an option exercise. 

2. Employee Stock Purchase Plan Purchases. The Policy’s trading restrictions do not apply to the purchase of Company stock through any 
employee stock purchase plan that the Company may maintain from time to time. The Policy’s trading restrictions do apply, however, to any election to participate 
in such plan for any enrollment period, and to the sale of any shares purchased pursuant to such plan. 

3. Restricted Stock/Unit and Performance Stock/Unit Awards. The Policy’s trading restrictions do not apply to the vesting of restricted 
stock/units or performance stock/units, or to the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which the person elects to have the Company withhold shares of 
stock to satisfy tax withholding requirements upon vesting. The trading restrictions do apply to any market sales of shares, such as a sale-to-cover. 

4. Certain Gifts. The Policy’s trading restrictions do not apply to a bona fide gift of Company stock so long as either (i) the recipient of the gift is 
subject to the same trading restrictions under this Policy as are applicable to you, or (ii) you otherwise have no reason to believe that the recipient intends to sell the 
securities immediately or during a period when you would not be permitted to trade pursuant to the terms of this Policy. 

STATEMENT OF POLICY 

Insider trading involves trading at any time when the person making the purchase or sale is aware of material nonpublic information regarding the 
company whose securities are being traded. If you have a doubt or question about whether you are aware of or in possession of material nonpublic information 
concerning the Company or another company, you should contact the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. 

A. No Trading on Material Nonpublic Information 
1. Company Securities. If you are a Covered Person, you must not purchase or sell any Company securities, or otherwise advise or assist any 

third-party trading Company securities, while you are aware of material nonpublic information regarding the Company. 

2 . Other Companies’ Securities. If you are a Covered Person and you obtain material nonpublic information about any other publicly-held 
company as a result of your work on behalf of the Company or any subsidiaries, you must not trade in that company’s securities. 

B. No Disclosure to Others Who Might Trade. If you are a Covered Person, you must not communicate material nonpublic information to any person 
who does not need that information for a legitimate business purpose, or recommend to anyone the purchase or sale of securities when you are aware of material 
nonpublic information about the company involved. This practice, known as "tipping,” also violates the securities laws and can result in the same civil and criminal 
penalties that apply to insider trading, even though you did not actually trade and did not benefit from another’s trading. 
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C. Protect Material Nonpublic Information. In order to reduce the possibility that material nonpublic information will be inadvertently disclosed: 
You must treat material nonpublic information as confidential, exercise the utmost caution in preserving the confidentiality of that information, and 

should not discuss it with any other person who does not need to know it for a legitimate business purpose. 

You should refrain from discussing material nonpublic information relating to the Company or any public company in public places where such 
discussions can be overheard. 

If you become aware of any leak of material nonpublic information, whether inadvertent or otherwise, you should report the leak immediately to the 
Company’s Chief Financial Officer. 

D. Specific Material Developments. From time to time, material developments known only to a limited number of Company personnel may occur to 
cause the Company to impose on an appropriate group of Company personnel additional restrictions on trading. You will be notified if you become part of such a 
group, and you should not disclose to others the fact that you have been so notified and that restrictions on trading have been imposed. 

ADDITIONALRESTRICTIONS ON CORPORATEINSIDERS 

If you are a Corporate Insider (directors and Section 16 officers of the Company and other officers and employees of the Company and any subsidiaries 
who have been designated as Corporate Insiders by the Chief Financial Officer), you are subject to additional restrictions on trading Company securities as set out 
in the attached Addendum. The Company may also, from time to time, impose on all or an appropriate group of Covered Persons additional restrictions on trading 
Company securities when circumstances warrant. These additional restrictions will be communicated by the Chief Financial Officer. 

DISCIPLINARYACTION AND POTENTIALCIVILAND CRIMINALPENALTIES 

A. Disciplinary Action. Company personnel who fail to comply with this Policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, which may include 
ineligibility to participate in the Company’s equity incentive plans or termination of employment. 

B. Civil and Criminal Penalties. The penalties for violating insider trading laws are severe. If you trade on (or tip) material nonpublic information, you 
are subject to civil penalties of up to three times the profit gained or loss avoided, criminal fines of up to $5,000,000 and up to 20 years imprisonment. If the 
Company fails to take appropriate steps to prevent insider trading, the Company and its directors, officers and other supervisory personnel may be subject to 
"controlling person” liability and potential civil and criminal penalties. 
MATERIALINFORMATION 

There are various categories of information that are particularly sensitive and, as a general rule, will presumptively be considered material. Examples of 
such information include: 

Financial results or financial condition. 
Projections of future earnings or losses. 
Restatements of financial results or material impairments, write-offs or restructurings. 
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Changes in auditors. 
Default under a significant financing arrangement, or financial liquidity problems. 
Business plans or budgets. 
Significant developments involving business relationships, including execution, modification or termination of significant agreements or orders with 

customers, suppliers, distributors, manufacturers or other business partners. 
Product introductions, modifications, recalls, significant pricing changes, or other product announcements of a significant nature. 
Public or private securities (equity or debt) offerings. 
Significant litigation exposure due to actual or threatened litigation. 
Significant regulatory exposure due to actual or threatened action by state or federal regulators. 
Significant corporate events, such as a pending or proposed merger, joint venture or tender offer, a significant investment, the acquisition or 

disposition of a significant business or asset, or a change in control of the company. 
Major personnel changes, such as changes in senior management or lay-offs. 
Major events regarding a company’s securities (such as defaults, redemptions, stock splits, repurchase plans, changes in dividends). 

INQUIRIES 

Inquiries regarding any of the provisions or procedures of this Insider Trading Policy should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer. 
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ADDENDUM 
ADDITIONALREQUIREMENTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES FORCORPORATEINSIDERS 

A. Purpose. This Addendum supplements the Mama’s Creations, Inc. (the "Company”) Insider Trading Policy and applies to Company directors 
and Section 16 officers as well as to other officers and employees designated by the Chief Financial Officer. These people are subject to both the general 
requirements of the Insider Trading Policy as well as to additional procedures and requirements described below to help prevent inadvertent violations of federal 
securities laws, to avoid even the appearance of impermissible insider trading, and to facilitate their compliance with certain legal requirements not applicable to 
Company personnel generally. 

B. Persons Covered. 

1. Directors and Section 16 Officers. All provisions of this Addendum apply to the directors and officers of the Company subject to Section 
16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (referred to herein as "Section 16 Officers”). 

2. Other Officers and Employees. Designated provisions of this Addendum apply to designated other officers of the Company and to 
designated employees. These other officers and employees, whose duties cause them to regularly have access to material nonpublic information about the 
Company, will be notified by the Chief Financial Officer that they are subject to this Addendum. 

3. Related Parties. If you are covered by paragraph B(1) or B(2), then this Addendum also applies to the same extent to your immediate family 
members and other individuals living in your household, and to any other person or entity, including a trust, corporation, partnership or other association, whose 
transactions in Company securities are directed by you or are subject to your influence or control. 

The individuals and entities described in paragraphs B(1), B(2) and B(3) above are collectively referred to as "Corporate Insiders.” 

C. Blackout Periods for all Corporate Insiders 

1. Trading Not Permitted During Blackout Periods. If you are a Corporate Insider, you may not purchase, sell or otherwise trade Company 
securities during blackout periods, as defined below. If a Corporate Insider wishes to trade outside of a blackout period, the person may do so only if he or she is 
not then aware of any material nonpublic information. In addition, before Corporate Insiders may trade outside of any blackout period, they must comply with the 
notification and pre-clearance procedures described below. 

2. Quarterly Blackout Periods. Trading in the Company’s securities is prohibited during the period beginning on the 16th day of the last 
calendar month of each fiscal quarter and continuing through the second trading day following the public release of the Company’s financial results for that fiscal 
quarter. During these periods, Corporate Insiders generally possess or are presumed to possess material nonpublic information about the Company's financial 
results. 

Illustration – Blackout Period: If financial results for the quarter ended April 30 are released after the stock market closes on June 21, then 
Corporate Insiders are prohibited from trading from April 16 through June 23, but could trade from June 24 through July 16, assuming that June 22 
and 23 are trading days and assuming that they are not aware of material nonpublic information. 



                       
                    
                    

                    

               

                        
                   
                      

                     
                        

                       
                         

                          
                      

                       

                     
     

             
                 
                  
                      

                         
                     

                       

                    
                          
                           

             

                          
          

      
US.359647572.03 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. Insider TradingPolicy Page 6 

3. Other Blackout Periods. From time to time, other types of material nonpublic information regarding the Company (such as negotiation of 
mergers, acquisitions or dispositions, investigation and assessment of cybersecurity incidents or new product developments) may be pending and not be publicly 
disclosed. While such material nonpublic information is pending, the Company may impose special blackout periods during which Corporate Insiders are prohibited 
from trading in the Company's securities. If the Company imposes a special blackout period, it will notify the Corporate Insiders affected. 

D. Required Preclearance of Trades 

1. Notices of Intended Transaction and Requests for Approval. If you are a Corporate Insider, you may not engage in any transaction 
involving Company securities without first obtaining pre-clearance of that transaction from the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. Prior to initiating any 
transaction in Company securities during a permitted trading period, you must deliver to the Chief Financial Officer a written notice providing certain information 
regarding the proposed transaction and confirmation that you have reviewed this Addendum and are not aware of any material, non-public information concerning 
the Company (a form to request preclearance is attached as Exhibit A). Notices of intended transactions and requests for approval may be delivered by e-mail. 

2. Clearance to Proceed with a Transaction. Prior to completing a transaction, a Corporate Insider must receive clearance of the Chief 
Financial Officer. Clearance in response to a written request for approval will generally be valid until the end of the current permitted trading period, unless an 
earlier deadline is imposed by the Chief Financial Officer, but a clearance may be revoked at any time without notice. If the Corporate Insider becomes aware of 
material, non-public information concerning the Company before the trade is executed, the pre-clearance shall be void and the trade must not be completed. 

E. Additional Obligations and Restrictions on Trading by Directors and Section 16 Officers 

1. Restricted Transactions. Directors and Section 16 Officers, or their designees, are also prohibited from engaging in the following 
transactions with respect to Company securities: 

purchasing Company securities on margin, or otherwise pledging Company securities; 
short sales of Company securities (selling securities not owned at the time of sale); 
buying or selling put or call options or other derivative securities based on Company securities; 
purchasing any financial instruments (including prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars and exchange funds) or otherwise engaging in 

transactions that are designed to or have the effect of hedging or offsetting any decrease in the market value of equity securities (i) granted to the 
individual by the Company as part of the compensation of the individual or (ii) held, directly or indirectly, by the individual; and 

engaging in limit orders or other pre-arranged transactions that execute automatically, except for "same-day” limit orders and approved 10b5-1 plans. 

2. Short-Swing Trading Restrictions. Section 16(b) restricts directors and Section 16 Officers of the Company from short-swing trading. 
Section 16(b) requires directors and Section 16 Officers to pay over to the Company any profit realized from any purchase and sale (in either order) of Company 
securities that occur within six months of each other. Section 16 and its related rules are very complex, and the Company will provide to each director and Section 
16 officer a separate memorandum discussing compliance with Section 16 and its related rules. 

Some transactions are exempt from Section 16(b). For example, a grant to a director or Section 16 Officer of an equity award will not be treated as 
a purchase under Section 16(b) if the grant is approved by 
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the Compensation Committee. In addition, the exercise, conversion, or vesting of an equity award is generally an exempt transaction under Section 16(b), although 
exercise or conversion is reportable under Section 16(a). 

3. Reporting of Beneficial Ownership. Section 16(a) requires Section 16 Officers and directors to report their beneficial ownership of 
Company securities to the Securities and Exchange Commission. Beneficial ownership is based on your direct or indirect pecuniary interest in the securities – i.e., 
your ability to profit from purchases or sales of the securities. In addition to the more obvious scenarios, you are considered to have a beneficial ownership of 
securities held by: 

• Household members – members of the insider’s immediate family sharing the same household; 
• Trust – if the insider has or shares investment control over the trust securities and the insider is a trustee (with a pecuniary interest in the trust 

securities), beneficiary, or settlor with the power to revoke the trust; and 
• Controlled entities – if the insider controls or has a controlling interest in an entity, such as a partnership, corporation or limited liability company. 

Section 16(a) also applies to options, warrants, convertible securities, stock appreciation rights, puts, calls or other rights to acquire ordinary shares that are 
independently entered into with another person as well as options issued by the Company. Section 16 Officers and directors should report beneficial ownership as 
follows: 

• Initial Report – Form 3: A Section 16 Officer or director must file Form 3 within ten days of the event triggering compliance, even if he or she does not 
own Company securities at the time. 

• Current Report – Form 4: A Section 16 Officer or director must report any changes that occur in his or her beneficial ownership of the Company’s 
securities on Form 4, which must be filed within two business days after the event/transaction requiring the filing. As a rule, this covers all non-exempt 
transactions involving Company securities, including purchases and sales of shares, changes in the form of beneficial ownership that also include a change 
in pecuniary interest, the grant, exercise, vesting and disposition of equity awards, the withholding of shares for taxes upon vesting of equity awards, and 
dispositions of shares by bona fide gift. 

• Annual Report – Form 5: A Section 16 Officer or director must file a Form 5 within 45 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year to report any 
non-exempt transactions not previously reported on Form 4. 

F. Exceptions for Approved 10b5-1 Plans 
Transactions by Corporate Insiders in Company securities that are executed pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 

amended ("10b5-1 Plan”), are not subject to prohibition on trading on the basis of material nonpublic information or the restrictions in this Addendum relating to the 
pre-clearance approval process or window periods, provided that the 10b5-1 Plan (i) is approved in writing in advance of any trades thereunder by the Chief 
Financial Officer; (ii) has not since been revised or modified; and (iii) was entered into in good faith at a time when the purchaser or seller, as applicable, was not 
in possession of material nonpublic information about the Company or subject to a blackout period, and further provided that the Corporate Insider complies with 
the applicable cooling-off period provided for in such 10b5-1 plan prior to the first sale or purchase thereunder. Any 10b5-1 Plan must be submitted for approval at 
least five days before the entry into such 10b5-1 Plan. While a 10b5-1 Plan is in effect, no further pre-approval of transactions conducted pursuant to the 10b5-1 
Plan will be required. 
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Subject to certain limited exceptions specified in Rule 10b5-1, Covered Persons are limited to one "single-trade” plan, which is a 10b5-1 Plan designed to 
effect an open market purchase or sale of the total amount of securities subject to the plan as a single transaction, in any 12-month period. In addition, subject o 
certain limited exceptions specified in Rule 10b5-1, individuals may not have multiple, overlapping 10b5-1 Plans during the same period. 

Modifications to 10b5-1 Plans may only be made during open trading windows, and, for all other purposes of this Policy including, without limitation, the 
requirement to obtain prior written approval of the Chief Financial Officer and the requirement to observe a new "cooling-off” period before reinstating 
transactions under the modified 10b5-1 Plan, the modified 10b5-1 Plan shall be deemed to be a new 10b5-1 Plan. Any individual who terminates a 10b5-1 Plan 
must promptly notify the Chief Financial Officer in writing. 

Rule 10b5-1 provides an affirmative defense from insider trading liability under the federal securities laws for 10b5-1 Plans that meet certain requirements. 
Once the plan is adopted, you must not exercise any influence over the securities subject to the plan, including the amount of securities to be traded, the price at 
which they are traded or the date of the trade. The plan must either specify (including by formula) the amount, pricing and timing of the transactions in advance or 
delegate discretion on those matters to an independent party. 

The Company and the Company’s directors and executive officers must make certain disclosures in SEC filings concerning 10b5-1 Plans. Directors and 
executive officers must undertake to provide any information requested by the Company regarding 10b5-1 Plans for the purpose of providing the required 
disclosures or any other disclosures the Company determines to be appropriate under the circumstances. 
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NOTICEOF INTENT TO TRADEIN Mama’s Creations, Inc. SECURITIES 

To: [ ] of Mama’s Creations, Inc. ______________
RE: Pending Securities Transaction 

FROM: 
Date: 

I request approval to execute the following transaction(s) relating to Mama’s Creations, Inc. securities on or before (insert date): 

Type of Transaction: 

Purchase Sale Exercise of Option Exercise of Option 
and Sale of Securities 

Other (explain:) 

Securities to be Traded: 

Number of shares or 
principal amount: 

If You Are Buying or Selling Securities (check one): 

Securities held/to be held directly by me 

Securities held/to be held by securities holder other than me: Print name of holder: 
Relationship of securities holder to me: 

I hereby represent that the transaction(s) referenced above will occur within the current permitted trading period of to . 

In connection therewith, I hereby certify that, in making this request, I am in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Insider Trading Policy. I understand that clearance for the transaction(s), if granted, will be valid only until the applicable permitted trading period ends, 
unless it is revoked earlier. 

Signed: 

For Chief Financial Officer Use Only 

Date and Time Received: By: 

Approved Rejected 

By: Date: ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer 

US.359647572.03 
Mama’s Creations, Inc. Insider TradingPolicy 



 
      

                       
                        

                              
                          

        
                     

  
   
  

Exhibit 23.1 
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements of Mama’s Creations, Inc. on Forms S-3 (File Nos. 333-275206 and 333-272398), S-8 
(File Nos. 333-270476 and 333-224260), and S-1 (No. 333-270087) of our report dated April 8, 2025, with respect to our audits of the consolidated financial 
statements of Mama’s Creations, Inc. as of January 31, 2025 and for the fiscal year then ended, and our report dated April 8, 2025 with respect to our audit of internal 
control over financial reporting of Mama’s Creations, Inc. as of January 31, 2025, which reports are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Mama’s Creations, 
Inc. for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025. 
Our report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting expressed an adverse opinion because of the existence of material weaknesses. 

/s/ UHY LLP 
New York, New York 
April 8, 2025 



 

      

                         
                          

                     

     
  

  

Exhibit 23.2 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We have issued our report dated April 24, 2024 with respect to the consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report of Mama’s Creations, Inc. on 
Form 10-K for the years ended January 31, 2024 and 2023. We consent to the incorporation by reference of said report in the Registration Statements of Mama’s 
Creations, Inc. on Forms S-8 (No. 333-224260 and No. 333-270476), Forms S-3 (No. 333-272398 and No. 333-275206) and Form S-1 (No. 333-270087). 

/s/ Rosenberg Rich Baker Berman P.A. 
Somerset, New Jersey 
April 8, 2025 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

      
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ Steven Burns 
Steven Burns 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

    
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ Alfred D’Agostino 
Alfred D’Agostino 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

      
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ TomToto 
TomToto 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

      
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ Dean Janeway 
Dean Janeway 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

      
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ Meghan Henson 
Meghan Henson 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

      
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ Shirley Romig 
Shirley Romig 



  
   

                   
                     

                          
                           

                      
                          

              

               

      
 

Mama’s Creations, Inc. 
Limited Power of Attorney 

The undersigned director of Mama’s Creations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby make, constitute and appoint Adam L. 
Michaels and Anthony Gruber, and each of them, the undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with power of substitution and resubstitution, 
for the undersigned and in the undersigned’s name, place and stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s name as such director of the Company to an Annual 
Report on Form10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025, or other applicable form, and any amendments thereto, to be filed by the Companywith the 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. (the "SEC”), and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other supporting documents in 
connection therewithwith the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and to performany and all 
acts necessary or incidental to the performance and execution of the powers herein expressly granted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set their hand this 4th dayofApril 2025. 

/s/ Lynn Blake 
Lynn Blake 



 
  

       
   

    

                   

                              
                   

                       
                  

                       
                      

                      
                       

     

                      
                    

  

                     
                   

                       
                

                        
         

                      
            

                       

   

  
 

  

Exhibit 31.1 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 302 OF THESARBANES-OXLEYACT OF 2002 
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

I, AdamMichaels, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form10-K for the period ended January 31, 2025 of Mama's Creations, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light 
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors 
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors: 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

Date: April 8, 2025 

/s/ Adam Michaels 
AdamMichaels 
Principal Executive Officer 



 

  
       

   

    

                   

                              
                   

                       
                  

                       
                      

                      
                       

     

                      
                    

  

                     
                   

                       
                

                        
         

                      
            

                       

   

  
 
  

Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 302 OF THESARBANES-OXLEYACT OF 2002 

(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

I, Anthony Gruber, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form10-K for the period ended January 31, 2025 of Mama's Creations, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light 
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors 
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors: 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

Date: April 8, 2025 

/s/ Anthony Gruber 
Anthony Gruber 
Principal Financial Officer 



 

  
       

   

                            
               

                               
                           

   

  
 

  

                          
           

Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THESARBANES-OXLEYACT OF 2002 

(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), the undersigned officer of 
MamaMancini’s Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that: 

The annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025 (the "Form 10-K”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company. 

Date: April 8, 2025 

/s/ Adam Michaels 
AdamMichaels 
Principal Executive Officer 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to MAMA'S CREATIONS, INC.. and will be retained by MAMA'S CREATIONS, INC. and 
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 



 

  
       

   

                            
               

                               
                           

   

  
 
    

                          
           

Exhibit 32.2 

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THESARBANES-OXLEYACT OF 2002 

(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), the undersigned officer of 
MamaMancini’s Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company”), does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that: 

The annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2025 (the "Form 10-K”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company. 

Date: April 8, 2025 

/s/ Anthony Gruber 
Anthony Gruber 
Principal Financial and Accounting Officer 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to MAMA'S CREATIONS, INC.. and will be retained by MAMA'S CREATIONS, INC. and 
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
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